BISMARCK PARKS AND \ \ \
P AV
RECREATION DISTRICT \ e* S Y

June 11, 2021

TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, Zimmerman and President Jeske
FROM: Randy Bina, Executive Director %”

SUBJECT:  June 17,2021 Park Board Meeting Packet and Overview

Commissioners:

Enclosed you will find the packet of information and overview for the Park Board meeting on
June 17, 2021 at 5:15 pm at the Tom Baker Meeting room.

Item 1. Call Meeting to Order and Roll Call
Item 2. Approve Agenda
Item 3. Featured Partners and Programs

e Sam McQuade Sr./Budweiser Charity Softball Tournament— Mike Wolf,
Tournament Co-Director
e July Celebration — Recreation Supervisor Spencer Aune

Item 4. Consider Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of General Obligation
Park Facilities Bonds, Series 2021
Mike Manstrom from Colliers International will appear before the Board to
present the results of the bond sale. Finance Director Kathy Feist has provided
information in your packet.

Item 5. 2020 Audit Presentation
Mindy Piatz will present the audited 2021 financial statements. Information is
provided in your packet.

Item 6. Consideration of Elk Ridge Third Addition Land Donation
Jason Petryszyn from Swenson Hagen will appear before the Board to review the
information found in your packet. The Board could act on whether or not to
accept the land donation.

Item 7. Consideration of 2021 Matching Grant Applications, Round 2
Commissioner Gilbertson will review the information provided in your packet
regarding the grant applications and proposed funding.

A vm\-{—}ono\l\y accredited Pﬂ\vk And vecCreation 0\9(=_V\C>/.

400 East Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P: (701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



Item 8.

Item 9.

Item 10.

Item 11.

Silver Ranch Neighborhood Park Name Consideration

In your packet you will find an email from Karen Danley, representing the
Silbernagel family, regarding their request to name the neighborhood park in the
Silver Ranch development “A. James Silbernagel Memorial Park.” The park
development agreement with the Silbernagel family includes the following
statement: “Naming Rights. The Property Owner shall have the right to name the
Park Area, subject to the approval of the Park Board.” Staff requests Board
approval of the request to name the park.

Disposition of Bids

Enclosed in your packet you will find summaries of the bids received for the
following projects:

e Sertoma Park Playground Near Shelter #11

Cottonwood Fence Project

Fox Island Improvements

McDowell Dam Improvements

Consent Agenda

A variety of items have been placed in a consent agenda. A consent agenda can

be approved with one motion, or an item or items can be removed for additional

discussion and separate action. Staff recommends approval of the following
items:

e Review and Approval of May 20, 2021, May 27, 2021 and June 2, 2021
Board Meeting Minutes — The minutes are included for your consideration.

e Request Board Approval of Corrected April 15, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes
— The April 15, 2021 Board meeting minutes failed to include Commissioner
Jordan’s voting on two motions on page two of the minutes. Staff
recommends Board approval of the corrected minutes.

e Request Board Approval of the following Agreements — Facilities and
Programs Director Kevin Klipfel has provided information on the following
agreements:

o USA Softball —2021 Slow Pitch Men’s D National Tournament
o VFW Sports Center Advertising Agreement
o Capital Ice Complex Advertising Agreement

Approval of Bills

Individuals or organizations who wish to appear before the Board on an existing agenda item
will also make the request in writing or emailed, delivered to the Bismarck Parks and Recreation
District office by 12:00 noon, 2 days prior to the regular monthly meeting of the Board of Park
Commissioners.

Next Regular Board Meeting: July 15,2021 at 5:15 pm in the Tom Baker Meeting Room



BISMARCK PARKS AND y \A \
RECREATION DISTRICT et 1% Y

Memo

To: Board of Park Commissioners and Randy Bina, Executive Director
From: Kathy Feist, Finance Director )NB

Date: June 10,2021

Re: General Obligation Park Facilities Bonds, Series 2021 Bond Sale

In December 2020, the Park Board authorized the sale of General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2021 for the purpose of funding the construction of park
improvements including, Sertoma Park parking lot, Sleepy Hollow trail, Gateway
Pond trail, Capitol Outfall trail, Igoe Park parking lot, Bismarck Municipal Ballpark
lighting system, Tom O’Leary restrooms, and related work and improvements. The
initial resolution was published in December 2020 and no protests were received
within 60 days of the publication as allowed by NDCC.

Mike Manstrom with Colliers International (formerly Dougherty & Company LLC)
will present the results of the General Obligation Park Facilities Bonds, Series 2021,
bond sale to the Board. If acceptable, the Board should adopt the resolution
authorizing issuance of the general obligation bonds.

Attached is a copy of the Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and sale of General
Obligation Park Facilities Bonds, Series 2021 that will be updated with the actual
bond sale results prior to the Park Board meeting. Mr. Manstrom will provide
additional information about the resolution and address any questions regarding
the resolution or bond sale.

Requested Board action is to approve the Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and
Sale of General Obligation Park Facilities Bonds, Series 2021.

A nationally accredited park and recreation agency.

400 East Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



PARK DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF
s
GENERAL OBLIGATION PARK FACILITIES BONDS, SERIES 2021

ARTICLE I
RECITALS

The Park District of the City of Bismarck, North Dakota (the "District"), a political
subdivision of the State of North Dakota duly formed and organized under the provisions of Chapter
40-49 of the North Dakota Century Code (the "N.D.C.C."), by this Resolution Authorizing the
Issuance and Sale of General Obligation Park Facilities Bonds, Series 2021 (the "Resolution")
authorizes the issuance of its General Obligation Park Facilities Bonds, Series 2021 (the "Bonds") in
the aggregate principal amount of $ for the purpose of constructing several park
improvements, including, but not limited to, Sertoma Park parking lot, Sleepy Hollow trail, Gateway
Pond trail, Capitol Outfall trail, Igoe Park parking lot, Bismarck Municipal Ballpark lighting system,
Tom O’Leary restrooms, and related work and improvements and to pay costs incidental to such
work and bond issuance (the "Project"), all as detailed herein.

The District hereby makes the following recitals regarding the Bonds:

Section 1.01. Initial Resolution, Amount., and Purpose. On December 17, 2020, the
governing body of the District adopted an Initial Resolution (the "Initial Resolution") for the
purpose of instituting proceedings for the issuance of up to $2,500,000 in general obligation bonds
under the authority of N.D.C.C. Chapter 21-03.

Section 1.02. Initial Resolution Adoption and Filing. Upon adoption of the Initial
Resolution by the District's governing body, the governing body ordered the Initial Resolution be
published in the Bismarck Tribune, the District’s official newspaper, on December 24, 2020.

Section 1.03. Protests Insufficient. The Clerk has certified that, within 60 days after the
aforementioned publication, there were not received written protests against adoption of the Initial
Resolution signed by the owners of taxable property having an assessed valuation equal to five
percent or more of the assessed valuation of all taxable property within the District.

Section 1.04. Debt Limit. The issuance of the Bonds will not exceed any statutory or
constitutional limit on indebtedness of the District.

Section 1.05. Project Purpose and Authority. Authorized the issuance of bonds, pursuant to
the Initial Resolution, to be issued for the purpose of providing funds for the cost of the Project,
which is a valid and authorized purpose for which the District may incur general obligation
indebtedness pursuant to the terms and provisions of N.D.C.C. Section 21-03-06(4).

Section 1.06. Estimated Cost of Project. The cost of the Project is estimated at not less than
the principal amount of the Bonds.




Section 1.07. Statutory and Procedural Compliance. The District has performed all
statutorily required procedures preliminary to the issuance of the Bonds and asserts that as a
condition of issuance all required acts, conditions and things prerequisite to the issue of the Bonds
have been performed and do exist and have been performed by the governing body which is legally
constituted and empowered to bind the District.

Section 1.08. Contract Letting. The District has let or will let contracts for any construction
and equipment acquisition according to law.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the governing body of the District as follows:

ARTICLE I1
CONDITIONS AND AGREEMENTS

Section 2.01. Appropriation. All monies required to be deposited in any funds and accounts
established by this Resolution are hereby dedicated and appropriated to the payment of outstanding
obligations properly chargeable against such funds and accounts when due and payable without
further authorization from the governing body of the District.

Section 2.02. Expenditure and Accounting. Expenditure of monies from any funds and
accounts established pursuant to this Resolution shall be made and accounted for by the officer or
officers of the District empowered to expend and required to account for the expenditure of the
District's funds.

Section 2.03. Official Certifications. The officers of the District are hereby authorized and
directed to take all actions, and execute and carry out or cause to be carried out the obligations which
are necessary or advisable in connection with this Resolution and the issuance, sale and delivery of
the Bonds. Such actions include, but shall not be limited to preparation and authorization of the use
of a Preliminary Official Statement and preparation, authorization of the use and execution of an
Official Statement relating to the Bonds, and amendments and supplements thereto. The officers of
the District are further authorized and directed to prepare, execute and furnish to the attorneys
passing on the legality of the Bonds, certified copies of all proceedings, ordinances, resolutions and
records and all such certificates and affidavits and other instruments as may be required to evidence
the legality and marketability of the Bonds, and all certified copies, certificates, affidavits and other
instruments so furnished shall constitute representations of the District as to the correctness of all
facts stated or recited therein. The officers of the District are further authorized to execute a
continuing disclosure certificate. Delivery of the Bonds is subject to the approving opinion of bond
counsel and customary closing certificates, including a certificate as to absence of material litigation
and an arbitrage certificate.

Section 2.04. Arbitrage Compliance. The District covenants that (i) it will restrict the use of
the proceeds of the Bonds in such manner and to such extent as may be necessary, in view of the
District's reasonable expectations at the time of issuance of the Bonds, so that the Bonds will not
constitute "arbitrage bonds" under Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended (the
"Code") and regulations prescribed under such Section, and (ii) it will take all actions that may be
required of it (including, without implied limitation, the timely filing of a federal information return
with respect to the Bonds) so that the interest on the Bonds will be and remain excluded from gross




income for federal income tax purposes, and will not take any actions which would adversely affect
such exclusion.

Section 2.05. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The District hereby designates the Bonds as
"qualified tax-exempt obligations" under Section 265 of the Code relating to the deduction allowed
financial institutions for interest expense allocable to tax-exempt interest. The District represents
that: (i) the Bonds are not private activity bonds under the private activity bond definition in the
Code; (ii) the reasonably anticipated amount of qualified tax-exempt obligations (other than private
activity bonds except for "qualified 501(c)(3) bonds" as defined in the Code) which will be issued
during 2021 will not exceed $10,000,000; and (iii) not more than $10,000,000 of qualified tax-
exempt obligations will be designated by the District (including any subordinate entities) for the
calendar year 2021.

Section 2.06. Filing With County Auditor. The Clerk is directed to file with the Burleigh
County Auditor a certified copy of this Resolution and to obtain from the County Auditor a
certificate stating that this Resolution has been so filed and that the Bonds have been recorded
substantially in the manner provided in Section 21-03-23, N.D.C.C.

Section 2.07. Debt Limit Certification. The Bonds will be endorsed by the manual or
facsimile signature of the Clerk certifying that the Bonds are issued in accordance with law and are
within the debt limit of the District.

Section 2.08. Custodian of Funds and Accounts. The Clerk of the District is hereby
designated as the custodian of any funds and accounts established by this Resolution and is hereby
authorized to take any action necessary to the levy and collection of taxes certified for collection by
this Resolution.

Section 2.09. Tax Levies. The full faith and credit and taxing powers of the District are
irrevocably pledged for the prompt and full payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. A
general tax direct, annual and irrepealable is hereby levied pursuant to the terms of N.D.C.C. Section
21-03-15 in sufficient amount, and in amounts of not less than nor for fewer years than shown on
Attachment 1 hereto, when taken together with any other monies provided from sources committed
by the District for the express purpose of paying the interest on such Bonds as it falls due, and also to
pay and discharge the principal thereof at maturity.

The District shall be without power and shall continue without power to repeal such levy or
levies or to obstruct a collection of any such tax until payments have been made or provided for,
except that if the governing body in any year makes an irrevocable appropriation to the Sinking Fund
Account of monies actually on hand, or if there is on hand in the Sinking Fund Account an excess
amount, the governing body may cause its Clerk to certify the fact and amount to the Burleigh
County Auditor with the direction that the County Auditor should reduce by the amount so certified
the amount otherwise to be included in the tax rolls next thereafter prepared.

Section 2.10. Rebate Compliance. The District covenants to pay directly to the government
of the United States of America all amounts due with respect to “arbitrage rebate” under Section
148(f) of the Code in connection with the Bonds.

Section 2.11. Continuing Disclosure. The District hereby covenants and agrees that it will
comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate.

3




Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, failure of the District to comply with the
Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not be considered an event of default; however, any
Bondholder may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate
or specific performance by court order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations under this
section.

Section 2.12. Official Statement. The Official Statement relating to the Bonds, prepared
and distributed on behalf of the District by Colliers Securities LLC, is hereby approved, and the
officers of the District are hereby authorized and directed to execute such certificates as may be
appropriate concerning the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency thereof.

Section 2.13. Certificates. The President and Clerk, in consultation with bond counsel, are
hereby authorized to deliver a certificate which cures ambiguities, defects or omissions herein,
corrects, amends or supplements any provision herein, all in furtherance of the financing
contemplated herein.

ARTICLE III
FUND AND ACCOUNTS

Section 3.01. Establishment of Fund. There is hereby established the Park District of the
City of Bismarck, North Dakota, General Obligation Park Facilities Bonds, Series 2021 Fund (the
"Fund") which shall be held separate and distinct from all other funds to be used for the purposes for
which it was borrowed and for no other purpose, except temporary investment, and as otherwise
permitted by law and shall be held by the Clerk of the District on deposit with a qualified depository
of public funds as provided by law.

Section 3.02. Establishment of Accounts. There are hereby established within the Fund the
following accounts:

A. Construction Account. The net proceeds (gross proceeds less the underwriter’s
discount) from the Bonds shall be deposited into the Construction Account, less any
accrued or funded interest thereon which shall be deposited in the Sinking Fund
Account, any additional monies pledged to defraying the construction cost and all
administrative costs and fees incident to the construction and issuance, and any
investment earnings on the Construction Account. Payable from the Construction
Account shall be the costs incidental to the construction and equipping of the Project
and costs incidental to the issuance of the Bonds.

B. Sinking Fund Account. Into the Sinking Fund Account shall be deposited (i) any
accrued interest and any funded interest on the Bonds when sold, (ii) any balances
remaining in the Construction Account when it is determined unlikely that any
additional cost properly payable from the Construction Account will arise, and (iii)
all collections from the levy of the general taxes required by Section 2.09 of this
Resolution and funds from any other source so appropriated by the governing body.
The District shall deposit with the Paying Agent five days prior to the date on which
any payment is due on the Bonds, an amount sufficient to make that payment.




ARTICLE IV

SALE OF BONDS
Section 4.01. Sale. As directed by the District, notice of sale of the Bonds has been
published in the Bismarck Tribune on ,2021. The written bids received for the purchase

of the Bonds have been submitted to this governing body. All written bids received for the purchase
of the Bonds, excepting the bid herein stated, are hereby rejected, and the Bonds are sold to
(the "Underwriter") as the best responsible and most favorable bidder
therefore, at a price of $ and a true interest rate of %, the sale to be subject to all of the
terms and conditions set forth herein, in the notice of sale of the Bonds and in the accepted bid
presented to this governing body.

Section 4.02. Principal Amount. The total principal amount of the Bonds shall be
Dollars ($ ).

Section 4.03. Denominations and Book Entry Registration. The Bonds shall be issued as
book entry bonds as required by the Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, in
the aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Bonds. The Bonds shall be
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of the DTC and the Paying Agent shall treat the
record owner as the absolute owner of the Bonds. So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of
the Bonds, references herein to the Bondholder, owner, etc. shall mean Cede & Co. and shall not
mean the beneficial owners of the Bonds. Sales by the purchaser of beneficial interest participations
in the Bonds to beneficial owners will be limited to minimum denominations of five thousand
dollars ($5,000) or any integral multiple in excess thereof.

With respect to the Bonds registered in the registration books kept by the Paying Agent in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the District, and the Paying Agent shall have no
responsibility or obligation to any Participant (as defined in the Blanket Issuer Letter of
Representations entered into between the District and DTC) or to any person on behalf of which a
Participant holds an interest in the Bonds. Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the
District and the Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the
accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any Participant with respect to any ownership
interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any Participant or any other person, other than a
Bondholder, as shown in the registration books kept by the Paying Agent, of any notice with respect
to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any Participant or any other
person, other than a Bondholder, as shown in the registration books kept by the Paying Agent, of any
amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds. The District and the
Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in whose name each Bond is registered in the
registration books kept by the Registrar as the holder and absolute owner of such Bond for the
purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Bond. The Paying Agent shall pay all principal
of, premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of the respective
Bondholders, as shown in the registration books kept by the Paying Agent, or their respective
attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully
satisfy and discharge the District's obligations with respect to payment of principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than a
Bondholder, as shown in the registration books kept by the Paying Agent, shall receive a certificated
Bond evidencing the obligation of the District to make payments of principal, premium, if any, and
interest pursuant hereto. Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent of written notice to the effect

5



that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede Co., and subject to the
provisions herein with respect to record dates, the word "Cede & Co." shall refer to such new
nominee of DTC.

The Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations has been executed by the District and has been
filed with DTC. The District will secure the Paying Agent's representation that it will comply with
the requirements of the DTC Operational Arrangements Memorandum dated December 12, 1994, as
it may be amended from time to time.

DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds at any
time by giving notice to the District and the Paying Agent. The District may terminate the services
of DTC with respect to the Bonds if the District determines that: (i) DTC is unable to discharge its
responsibilities with respect to the Bonds, or (ii) a continuance of the requirement that all of the
outstanding Bonds be registered in the registration books kept by the Trustee in the name of Cede &
Co., or any other nominee of DTC, is not in the best interest of the beneficial owners of the Bonds.

Upon the termination of the services of DTC with respect to the Bonds, or upon the
discontinuance or termination of the services of DTC with respect to any portion of the Bonds
pursuant to this section after which no substitute bond depository willing to undertake the functions
of DTC hereunder can be found which, in the opinion of the District, is willing and able to undertake
such functions upon reasonable and customary terms, the District is obligated to deliver Bond
certificates to the Bondholders and the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the
registration books kept by the Paying Agent in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of DTC, but may
be registered in whatever name or names the Bondholders transferring or exchanging Bonds shall
designate, in accordance with the provisions hereof.

Notwithstanding any other provision hereof to the contrary, so long as any Bond is registered
in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to principal of, premium,
if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such Bond shall be made and give,
respectively, in the manner provided in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations.

Section 4.04. Maturity. The Bonds shall mature serially.

Section 4.05. Numbering. The Bonds shall be numbered in consecutive numerical order
from R-1 upwards as issued.

Section 4.06. Dates. The Bonds shall be dated July 1, 2021.

Section 4.07. Principal Maturities. The Bonds shall mature or be subject to mandatory
redemption on May 1 in the years and in the amounts set forth in the Schedule of Maturities and
Interest Rates attached as Attachment 2.

Section 4.08. Redemption. Bonds maturing in the years 2022 through 2027 are payable on
their respective stated maturity dates without option of prior payment. Bonds maturing in the years
2028 and thereafter shall be subject to redemption and prepayment at the option of District, in any
order of maturities and by lot, assigned in proportion to their principal amount, within any maturity,
on May 1, 2027, and on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus
accrued interest. Not less than 30 days prior to the date specified for prepayment and redemption of
any Bonds the District will cause notice of the call thereof to be mailed to the registered owner and
to the Paying Agent at which principal and interest are then payable. Upon partial redemption of any

6



Bond, a new Bond or Bonds will be delivered to the owner without charge, representing the
remaining principal amount outstanding.

Section 4.09. Registrar, Authenticating and Paying Agent, and Place of Payment. Starion
Bond Services, Bismarck, North Dakota is hereby appointed the sole Paying Agent for the Bonds.
The place of payment of the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds shall be the
office of the Paying Agent. Interest on the Bonds and, upon presentation and surrender thereof, the
principal thereof shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America by wire transfer
to DTC by Starion Bond Services, Bismarck, North Dakota, as Bond Registrar, Authenticating and
Paying Agent (the "Bond Registrar" or "Paying Agent"), or its successor.

Section 4.10. Preparation, Execution and Delivery. The Bonds shall be prepared under the
supervision and at the direction of the Clerk of the District, sealed with the original or a facsimile
seal of the District, executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the President of the Board of
Park Commissioners of the District and attested to by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk
and delivered to the Underwriter at closing upon receipt of the purchase price plus any accrued
interest. The Bonds shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any
security or benefit under this Resolution until the Certificate of Authentication thereon shall have
been executed by the Bond Registrar by manual signature of one of its authorized representatives.
The Bonds shall be reproduced in substantially the form on file with the Clerk.

Section 4.11. Interest. The Bonds shall bear interest at the rates set forth in the Schedule of
Maturities and Interest Rates attached hereto as Attachment 2. Interest shall be payable on May 1
and November 1 in each year, commencing May 1, 2022, to the person in whose name each Bond is
registered at the close of business on the 15™ day (whether or not a business day) of the immediately
preceding month. Interest on the Bonds shall cease at maturity or on a date prior thereto on which
they have been duly called for redemption unless the holder thereof shall present the same for
payment and payment is refused.

Section 4.12. Source of Payment/Security. The Bonds are payable as to principal and
interest from the Sinking Fund Account created by this Resolution, which Sinking Fund Account
shall derive its revenues from the levy of a general obligation ad valorem tax against all the taxable
property located within the boundaries of the District.

Section 4.13. Assignment. The Bonds are transferable upon the books of the District at the
principal office of the Bond Registrar, by the registered owner thereof in person or by the owner's
attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender thereof together with a written instrument of
transfer satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner or the owner's
attorney; and may also be surrendered in exchange for Bonds of other authorized denominations.
Upon such transfer or exchange, the District will cause a new Bond or Bonds to be issued in the
name of the transferee or registered owner, of the same aggregate principal amount, bearing interest
at the same rate and maturing on the same date, subject to reimbursement for any tax, fee or
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange. No transfer of
Bonds shall be required to be made during the fifteen days next preceding an interest payment date,
nor during the forty-five (45) days next preceding the date fixed for redemption of Bonds.

Section 4.14. Discharge. When all of the Bonds, and the interest thereon, have been
discharged as provided in this paragraph, all pledges, covenants and other rights granted by this
Resolution shall cease. The District may discharge all Bonds and interest due on any date by

7



depositing with the Paying Agent on or before that date a sum sufficient for the payment thereof in
full; or if any Bond or interest thereon should not be paid when due, the same may nevertheless be
discharged by depositing with the Paying Agent a sum sufficient for the payment thereof in full with
interest accrued from the due date to the date of such deposit. The District may also discharge all
prepayable Bonds, if any, called for redemption on any date when they are prepayable according to
their terms, by depositing with the Paying Agent on or before that date a sum sufficient for the
payment thereof in full, provided that notice of the redemption thereof has been duly given as
provided herein. The District may also discharge all Bonds at any time, by irrevocably depositing in
escrow with an escrow agent, for the purpose of paying all principal and interest due on such Bonds
prior to a date upon which all of the same will be prepayable according to their terms, and paying all
remaining Bonds on that date, a sum of cash and securities of the same types described in N.D.C.C.
Section 21-03-06(7)(c) or deposits in the Bank of North Dakota which, as provided by N.D.C.C.
Section 6-09-10, are guaranteed by the State in such aggregate amount, bearing interest at such rates
and maturing or callable at the holder's option on such dates as shall be required to provide funds
sufficient for this purpose; provided that notice of the redemption of all prepayable Bonds on or
before such date has been duly given as required herein.

Dated: June 17, 2021.

PARK DISTRICT OF THE Attest:
CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

President, Board of Park Commissioners Clerk

The governing body of the District acted on the foregoing resolution at a properly noticed meeting
held in Bismarck, North Dakota, on June 17, 2021, with the motion for adoption made by
and seconded by , and the roll call vote on the motion was as

follows:

llAyell

HNayll

"Absent"




ATTACHMENT 1

$
PARK DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
GENERAL OBLIGATION PARK FACILITIES BONDS, SERIES 2021

TAX LEVY

Year of Year of

Levy Collection Levy*
2021 2022 ' $
2022 2023 $
2023 2024 $
2024 2025 $
2025 2026 $
2026 2027 $
2027 2028 $
2028 2029 $
2029 2030 $
2030 2031 $

* Levy is approximately ten percent greater than the amount of principal and interest due to
accommodate the five percent discount for taxes paid prior to February 15" of each tax year and late
payments.



$

ATTACHMENT 2

PARK DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA
GENERAL OBLIGATION PARK FACILITIES BONDS, SERIES 2021

SCHEDULE OF MATURITIES AND INTEREST RATES

Serial Bonds

Date

Amount

Rate

May 1, 2022

$

%

Term Bonds

$ @ % Term Bond Maturing May 1, 20

Date

Principal Amount




BISMARCK PARKS AND

\
¢ Play:
!I;{SE%I;EATION DISTRICT \ e;\* S Y

Memo

TO: Board of Park Commissioners and Randy Bina, Executive Director
FROM: Kathy Feist, Finance Director)&&

DATE: June 10 2020 ‘

RE: 2020 Audit Report

The audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the management
letter are included in your agenda packets. Mindy Piatz from Brady, Martz and Associates will
present the audited financial statements.

Requested Board action is to either approve the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District’s
audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 at the June 17, 2021 board
meeting or postpone board action until the July 15" meeting if more time to review is needed.

A nationally accredifed park and vecreation agency.

400 East Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position 22
Statement of Activities 23
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 24
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Position 25
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds 26
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 27
Notes to the Financial Statements 28
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Budget Comparison Schedule - General Fund 55
Budget Comparison Schedule - Special Assessment Fund 56
Schedule of Employer's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 57
Schedule of Employer Contributions 58
Schedule of Employer’s Share of Net OPEB Liability 59
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 60
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 61
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 62
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 63
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 65
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 68

Corrective Action Plan 70



BradyMartz

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Park Commissioners
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District
Bismarck, North Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and
each major fund, of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

-1- Make Every Day Count |



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund, of the
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District, as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes
in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Correction of Error

As described in Note 18 to the financial statements, the 2019 financial statements have been
restated to correct a misstatement. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedules, schedule of
employer's proportionate share of net pension liability, schedule of employer contributions,
schedule of employer’'s share of net OPEB liability and notes to the required supplementary
information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Bismarck Parks and Recreation District's basic financial statements. The
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and related notes are presented for purposes of
additional analysis, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, and are also not required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and notes to the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
-2
Make Every Day Count |



procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and notes are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June
9, 2021 on our consideration of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District’'s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Bismarck Parks and Recreation District's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Trud, Mart5

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

June 9, 2021

Make Every Day Count |



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

This section of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District’s (the District) annual financial report
presents a discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance for the year ended
December 31, 2020. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial
performance as a whole. Readers are encouraged to review the District's basic financial
statements, which follow this section, to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial
performance.

> The vision statement of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District is “To be the
leader and premier provider of public parks, programs, facilities and leisure
services.”

» The mission statement of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District is “To work with
the community to provide residents and visitors the highest quality park, program,
facility, and event experience.”

Financial Highlights

The total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources at December 31, 2020 by $52,697,271. Of this
amount, $4,896,851 is unrestricted in governmental activities and may be used to meet
the District's ongoing obligations. Another $2,896,357 is restricted by constraints
imposed on resources either externally or imposed by law and $44,904,063 is invested
in capital assets.

The District's total net position increased by $4,868,623 during the year ended
December 31, 2020.

At December 31, 2020, the District's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $10,038,275, an increase of $2,426,171 in comparison with the 2019 year.
About $1.5 million of this increase is due to the receipt of bond proceeds to fund the
construction of the park shop maintenance facility that will be completed in 2021. The
balance of this increase is not attributable to any specific transaction but rather a
combination of a net increase in the collection of revenue plus a net decrease in
expenditures.

The District had $16,937,410 in general fund revenue and $357,332 in other financing
sources. General fund expenditures were $16,543,909 and there were no other
financing uses. Local taxes contributed to 51% of the general fund revenue. Revenues
and other sources exceeded expenditures and other uses by $750,833.

At December 31, 2020, the general fund unassigned fund balance was $3,735,435 or
22.6% of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

The District’s long-term financing debt decreased by $78,132 (.3 percent) during the
2020 year. Revenue bond proceeds in the amount of $5,915,000 were obtained to
finance the park shop maintenance facility and to refinance the capital lease for the
Capital Ice Complex expansion.



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

The District receives property tax revenue through the mill levy process. The District’'s
mill levy for 2020 due January 2021 was 34.22 or 14.5% of the total mills levied. The
general fund mill levy was 22.62 mills. The following chart indicates the allocation of
property tax funds to the major governmental entities.

2020 Mill Levies
Total Mills 236.59

School
107.19
45.3%

Park
34.22
14.5%

State/County.
36.30
15.3%
@ School
oOCity
City @ State/County
58.88
24.9% O Park




BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

The following is a brief overview of each major operational area of the District with
emphasis on financial information and statistics:

Facility Division - Outdoor Swimming Pools

e The District operates three swimming pools — Elks Aquatic Center, Hillside Aquatic Complex
and Wachter Aquatic Complex. The daily attendance at the three pools was 40,923, for the
entire 2020 year, a decrease of 3,329 from 2019.

e 40% of operating costs of the pools were covered by non-tax revenue.

Outdoor Pools - Revenue

Fees &
Charges
82%

Concessions
18%

Outdoor Pools - Expensesl

Utilities Miscellaneous
11% 1%

Salaries &
Wages
63%

Insurance

7% \

Supplies/Operationsv
17%
Contract

Services
1%




BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Golf Operations Division

e The Golf Operations Division operates three golf courses — Riverwood, Tom O’Leary and
the Pebble Creek/Fore Seasons Center.

e The golf courses had 84,374 rounds of golf during 2020. This was 20,015 rounds more
than 2019.

o 80% of operating costs were covered by non-tax revenue.

e The following is a graphic presentation of revenue and expenses related to Golf

Operations:
Golf Operations - Revenue I
Construction Concessions Miscellaneous
Fee 1%
Rents & % s
Rentals eason

4%

Sponsorships
2%

Green Fees &
Packages

Driving Range 36%
()

9%

Cart Rental
28%

Golf Operations - Expenses l

Salaries &
Wages
53% Contractual

Services

1%
Supplies/
Q/,Operations
, \/ 18%
Miscellaneous
3%

Capital Utilities
Equipment 13%
4% Insurance
8%




BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Park Operations Division

o Park Operations provides general maintenance and service to the District. In addition, Parks
Operations manages Eagles Park, General Sibley Park, McDowell Dam, and Burleigh
County Parks.

o Park Operations had 1,719 shelter reservations in 2020, a decrease of 766 from 2019.

e The Bismarck Forestry department continued to provide forestry services for the District
under an agreement with the City of Bismarck.

e The following is a graphic presentation of revenue and expenses related to Park Operations,
Eagles Park, General Sibley Park, McDowell Dam and Burleigh County Parks:

Park Operations - Revenue
Fees & Charges
65%
Management
Contracts
31%
Miscellaneous
2%
Concessions
Grants 1%
1%
Park Operations - Expenses
Contractual
Services
Salaries & 8%
Wages
46%
Supplies/
Operations
15%
Miscellaneous
1%
Capital Uﬁ""f",/?)s
Equipment &
Improvements Insurance
4% 12%




BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Recreation Division

The District manages a wide variety of youth and adult programs. Some of the programs
include BLAST (542 participants), adult volleyball (6,164), activity centers (440), and open
gym (5,577).

65% of operating costs were covered by non-tax revenue.

The following is a graphic presentation of revenue & expenses related to the various
recreational activities:

Recreation - Revenue I

Other Youth
62%
Y outh Sports
16%

Other Youth &
Adult
1%

Adult Sports
21%

Recreation - Expenses l

Other Youth &
Adult
1%
Other Youth
0,
41% Adult Sports
13%

Y outh Sports
14%

Administration
31%




BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Indoor Arenas - VFW Sports Center Rinks 1 & 2; Capital Ice Complex — Schaumberg &
Wachter Arenas

e 48% of operating costs were covered by non-tax revenue.

¢ |ce rental accounts for 89% of generated revenue in arena operations with most attributed to
long-term agreements with youth and adult organizations, schools and Junior hockey.

e The following is a graphic presentation of revenue and expenses related to the Indoor Arenas:

Indoor Arenas - Revenue

Fees &
Charges
92%

Concessions
8%

Indoor Arenas - Expenses

Salaries &
Wages

\

Contract
Services
3%

Utilities
41%

Insurance
7% Supplies/
Operations

19%




BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Capital Racquet and Fitness Center
e Monthly membership’s usage was 21,059 in 2020 compared to 30,571 in 2019.

e There were 7,685 tennis court hours in 2020 compared to 9,483 in 2019.

e 60% of operating costs of Capital Racquet and Fitness Center were covered by non-tax
revenue.

o The following is a graphic presentation of revenue & expenses related to Capital Racquet and
Fitness Center:

Capital Racquet and Fithess Center - Revenue l

Racquetball, Tennis & Tennis
Walleyball, and Lessons
Pickleball 53%

1%

Special Events _/»

Group Fitness /

and Programs \/_ El’_?;sirzzal
0,
5% 10
Rent & Rentals
6% User Package
Concessions and Fees
and Pro Shop 32%

2%

Capital Racquet and Fithess Center - Expenses l

Salaries & Contractual

Wages Services
5% / 4%
Supplies/
Operations
14%

Mi I Insurance
iscellaneous Utilities 11%

3% 13%

-11-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

BSC Aquatic and Wellness Center

The number of individuals taking swimming lessons decreased by 1,140 in 2020 with 1,788
compared to 2,928 in 2019.

There were 6,684 participants in group exercise during 2020 compared to 6,211 in 2019.

68% of operating costs of BSC Aquatic and Wellness Center were covered by non-tax
revenue.

The following is a graphic presentation of revenue & expenses related to BSC Aquatic and
Wellness Center:

BSC Aquatic and Wellness Center - Revenue I

Rent & Rentals

Concessions 3%
1%
Management
User Package Contracts
and Fees 60%
19% ’
Group Fitness /\/

Personal
Training Special Events
1% and Programs
4%
Sw imming Other
Lessons 1%

11%

BSC Aquatic and Wellness Center - Expenses I

Capital
Equipment
1%

Miscellaneous
1%

Utilities .
21% Salaries &
Wages
51%
Insurance"
11%
Contractual
Services
2%

Supplies/
Operations

13%

-12-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Frances Leach High Prairie Arts & Science Complex

45% of operating costs of the Frances Leach High Prairie Arts & Science Complex were
covered by non-tax revenue.

The High Prairie Arts & Science Complex is home to three BPRD partners: Gateway to
Science, Shade Tree Players/Dakota Stage and Theo Art School.

The following is a graphic presentation of revenues and expenses related to the Frances
Leach High Prairie Arts & Science Complex:

\High Prairie Arts & Science Center - Revenuel

Rent & Rentals
100%

High Prairie Arts & Science Center - Expensesl

Supplies/
) Insurance
Operations 39
22% / o
Utilities
37%
Contractual

Services
38%

-13-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Bismarck Parks and
Recreation District’s basic financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements comprise
three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the financial statements

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to
a private-sector business. These financial statements are prepared on a full accrual basis of
accounting. This basically means that the statements follow methods that are similar to those
used in most businesses. The statements take into account all revenues and expenses connected
with the fiscal year even if cash involved has not been received or paid. The government-wide
financial statements include two statements:

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’'s assets, deferred
inflows, deferred outflows, and liabilities, with the difference reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for example, uncollected taxes and earned,
but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Bismarck Parks
and Recreation District that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the District include general and administration, park operations and
maintenance, recreation programs, and principal and interest on long term debt. The District
has no business-type activities.

Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
The District has only governmental funds.

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental financial statements
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. This information may be useful in
evaluating the District’s near-term financing requirements.

-14 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements, by doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District's
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
f acilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Bismarck Parks and Recreation District maintains six individual governmental funds.
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the
General Fund, Special Assessment Fund, Park Improvement Fund, Construction Fund, and the
Debt Service Fund which are considered to be major funds. The Park District has elected to show
t he Government Construction Fund as it is the only non-major governmental fund.

The Bismarck Parks and Recreation District adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of its
funds. A budgetary comparison statement for the general fund and special assessment fund has
been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data

provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $52,697,271 at December 31, 2020.

The largest part of the District’'s net position (85 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets
(land, construction in progress, building and building improvements, machinery and equipment
and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The
District uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities.

-15-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

The following is a summary of net position as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Governmental Activities

2020 2019
Current and Other Assets $ 11,282,897 $ 9,195,139
Capital Assets 75,988,940 72,532,984
Total Assets $ 87,271,837 $ 81,728,123
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 1,267,960 $ 1,830,810
Current Liabilities 5,329,267 5,732,133
Long-Term Liabilities 29,850,250 29,079,171
Total Liabilities $ 35,179,517 $ 34,811,304
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 663,009 $ 56,270
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 44,904,063 41,576,970
Restricted 2,896,357 2,698,593
Unrestricted 4,896,851 3,553,085
Total Net Position $ 52,697,271 $ 47,828,648
The restricted net position classification is required by GASB Statement No. 54. It includes

amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external resource providers

or through enabling legislation.

-16 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

The following is a summary of changes in net position for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Revenues:

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
Total Program Revenues

General Revenues:
Property Tax
Grants and Entitlements not restricted
Investment Earnings
Lease
Miscellaneous
Total General Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenses:
Park District Operations

Facilities / Recreation
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Issuance Costs on Long-Term Debt
Total Expenses
Increase in Net Position

Net Position - January 1

Net Position - December 31

Governmental Activities

2020 2019
$ 6,183,408 6,402,176
422,972 34,341
2,431,805 2,502,917
$ 9,038,185 8,939,434
13,319,585 13,048,069
1,394,140 1,636,032
124,401 335,095
492,690 434,374
237,858 84,778
$ 15,568,674 15,538,348
$ 24,606,859 24,477,782
7,915,220 7,352,829
10,967,048 10,847,139
617,117 880,818
238,851 163,581
$ 19,738,236 19,244,367
$ 4,868,623 5,233,415
$ 47,828,648 42,595,233
$ 52,697,271 47,828,648

-17 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

The following chart depicts functions/programs revenue and expenses for all governmental funds.
Other financing sources (uses) are not included which consist of proceeds from long term debt
and interfund transfers.

\Revenue and Expenditures - All Governmental Funds

18,000,000 '

16,000,000

14,000,000

12,000,000

10,000,000

8,000,000

6,000,000

4,000,000

2,000,000

General Special Park Construction Debt Govemment
Assess Improvemt Fund Service Construction
Fund

ORevenue 16,937,410 2,696,469 2,819,629 2,392,434

400,340

BExpenses| 16,543,909 2,794,047 7,244,832 2,005,911

452,878

-18-




BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

The following charts depict revenue by source for all the governmental funds and the general
fund.

\Revenue by Source - All Governmental FundsI

Interest
Charges for 1%
Services

24%

Donations and
Miscellaneous
3%

Intergovernmental
10%

Revenue by Source - General Fund l

Other
4%

Charges for
Services
37%

Intergovernmental
8%

-19.-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. The focus of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District’s
governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements. Unassigned
fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year. The District's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $10,038,275 an increase of $2,426,171 from 2019. About $1.5 million of
this increase is due to the receipt of bond proceeds to fund the construction of the park shop
maintenance facility that will be completed in 2021. The balance of this increase is not attributable
to any specific transaction but rather a combination of a net increase in the collection of revenue
plus a net decrease in expenditures.

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District and
reported an ending fund balance of $3,785,435. During the year, revenues and other sources
exceeded expenditures and other uses $750,833.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District’s Board of Park Commissioners approved the 2020 annual budget at the September
19, 2019 board meeting. The annual budget addresses funding from other sources as well as
detailing how each fund should be expended. The 2020 general fund budget appropriation was
$17,503,650.

During 2020, actual revenues were lower than the budgetary estimates by $243,740,
approximately 1.4%. The final budget exceeded the actual expenditures by $951,741 or 5.4%.
Revenues were lower than budgeted amounts due to the impact of the COVID-19 global
pandemic. Facilities were closed for a portion of the year and programs were either ended early
or cancelled. The District reduced expenditures to minimize the impact of the pandemic on the
financial standing of the District.

Capital Assets

The District’s investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress, building and
building improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. See Note 6 Capital Assets
in the notes to the financial statements for more information.

Major capital asset additions during the year were:

VFW Lower Lobby Improvements for $328,323

Overlay Riverwood Golf Car Paths — Phase | for $302,288

Reconstruct/Expand Fore Seasons Center/Pebble Creek Golf Course Parking Lot for $378,460
Construct Elk Ridge Neighborhood Park for $1,500,567

Expand New Generations Park Parking Lot for $188,137

Construct Sovereign Land Access Improvements for $413,178

Replace Sertoma Park Shelter #4 Playground for $196,233

Reconstruct Chief Lookings Village Road for $337,544

-20-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

A schedule of capital assets, net of depreciation, for the years ended December 31, 2020 and

2019 is as follows:

Governmental Activities

Asset Type 2020 2019

Land $ 7,807,137 $ 6,970,387

Construction in progress 993,380 4,330,088

Buildings and improvements 60,691,816 54,794,954

Machinery and equipment 1,429,885 1,565,396

Infrastructure 5,066,722 4,872,159
Total $ 75,988,940 $ 72,532,984

Long Term Debt

Major long-term debt events during the year were:

e Issuance of $5,915,000 in revenue bonds to finance the construction of the park shop

maintenance facility.

e Issuance of $352,311 capital lease to refinance the construction of the Bio-Mass Heating

Building

e Special Assessments added by the City of Bismarck in the amount of $1,603,299 which
includes a $1,130,420 assessment for the construction of the Elk Ridge Neighborhood

Park.

See Note 7 Long-Term Debt in the notes to the financial statements for more information.

A schedule of long-term liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:
Governmental Activities

Long-Term Liabilities 2020 2019
Compensated Leave Balances $ 786,477 $ 695,907
Post Retirement Benefit Obligations 437,484 508,869
Net Pension Liability 1,485,481 1,485,481
Unamoritized Bond Premium 419,673 211,678
Revenue Bonds Payable 13,420,000 8,355,000
Capital Leases 1,205,374 5,615,412
Special Assessments Debt 16,039,830 16,772,924
Total $ 33,794,319 $ 33,645,271

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Bismarck Parks and
Recreation District's finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to: Randy Bina, Executive Director of Parks and
Recreation, Bismarck Parks and Recreation District, 400 East Front Avenue, Bismarck, ND

58504.

-9 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2020

ASSETS:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - board designated

Investments

Investments - board designated

Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable

Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land
Construction in progress
Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total non-current assets:
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred outflow - pension

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Interest payable
Compensated absences, current portion
Post-retirement benefit obligations, current portion
Long term debt, current portion

Total current liabilities:

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences, non-current portion
Post-retirement benefit obligations, non-current portion
Long term debt, non-current portion
Unamortized bond premium
Net pension liability

Total non-current liabilities:
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred inflow - pension

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Debt Senvice
Special Assessments
Unrestricted

Total net position

See Notes to the Financial Statements

-22 -

$ 3,778,085
50,000
862,236
600,000
169,742
1,375,324

2,848,028
1,599,482

11,282,897

7,807,137
993,380
60,691,816
1,429,885
5,066,722

75,988,940

87,271,837

1,267,960

1,074,215
47,656
263,327
241,560
42,915
4,334,546

6,004,219

544,917
394,569
26,330,658
419,673
1,485,481

29,175,298

35,179,517

663,009

44,904,063

1,431,578
1,464,779

4,896,851

$ 52,697,271



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Governmental Activities:
District operations
Facilities / recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Issuance costs on long-term debt

Total Governmental Activities

Net (Expense)

Revenue and

Changes in

Program Revenues Net Position

Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants
Expenses Services and Contributions and Contributions Total

$ 7,915,220 $ - $ 422,972 $ - $ (7,492,248)
10,967,048 6,183,408 - 2,431,805 (2,351,835)
751,154 - - - (751,154)
104,814 - - - (104,814)
$ 19,738,236 $6,183,408 $ 422,972 $ 2,431,805 (10,700,051)

General Revenues
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Lease
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues
Change in net position

Total net position, beginning of year, as originally stated
Prior period adjustment - see note 18
Total net position, as restated

Net position - end of year

See Notes to the Financial Statements

-23-

13,319,585
1,394,140
124,401
492,690
237,858

15,568,674

4,868,623

47,140,108
688,540

47,828,648
$ 52,697,271



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Special Park Governmental
Assessment Improvement Construction Debt Service Construction
General Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,460,011 $ - $ 123,734 $ 115,249 $ - $ 79,091 $ 3,778,085
Cash and cash equivalents - board designated 50,000 - - - - - 50,000
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted - 1,416,450 - - 1,431,578 - 2,848,028
Investments - - 221,192 410,843 - 230,201 862,236
Investments - board designated - - 600,000 - - - 600,000
Investments - restricted - 67,396 1,532,086 - - - 1,599,482
Taxes receivable 111,701 33,241 - 24,800 - - 169,742
Accounts receivable 577,506 130,000 403,775 264,043 - - 1,375,324
Total assets $ 4,199,218 $ 1,647,087 $ 2,880,787 $ 814,935 $ 1,431,578 $ 309,292 $ 11,282,897
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 285,431 $ - $ 588,320 $ 130,526 $ - $ 69,938 $ 1,074,215
Accrued expenses 47 656 - - - - - 47,656
Total liabilities 333,087 - 588,320 130,526 - 69,938 1,121,871
Deferred inflows of resources:
Delinquent property taxes 80,696 24,121 - 17,934 - - 122,751
Fund balances:
Restricted - 1,622,966 1,532,086 - 1,431,578 - 4,586,630
Committed 50,000 - 600,000 - - - 650,000
Assigned - - 160,381 666,475 - 239,354 1,066,210
Unassigned 3,735,435 - - - - - 3,735,435
Total fund balances 3,785,435 1,622,966 2,292,467 666,475 1,431,578 239,354 10,038,275
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 4,199,218 $ 1,647,087 $ 2,880,787 $ 814,935 $ 1,431,578 $ 309,292 $ 11,282,897

See Notes to the Financial Statements

-24 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Total Governmental Funds Balance $ 10,038,275

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore not reported in the funds. 75,988,940

Certain revenues will be collected after year-end, but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period's
expenditures and therefore are reported as deferred inflows
of resources or are not recognized in the funds.
Delinquent property taxes 122,751

Deferred outflows relating to the cost sharing defined benefit plans
in the governmental activities are not financial resources, and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 1,267,960

Long-term liabilities not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not included in the funds:

Compensated absences (786,477)
Post-retirement benefit obligations (437,484)
Accrued interest on long-term liabilities (263,327)
Long term debt (30,665,204)
Unamortized bond premium (419,673)
Net pension liability (1,485,481)
Total (34,057,646)

Deferred inflows relating to the cost sharing defined benefit plans
in the governmental activities are not financial resources, and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. (663,009)

Net position of governmental activities $ 52,697,271

See Notes to the Financial Statements

-25-



Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Grants
Leases
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
General maintenance
Golf
Capital Racquet Fitness Center
Aquatic Wellness Center
Pools
Ice arenas
Forestry
Memorial Building
Sibley Park
County parks
McDowell Dam
High Prairie Arts and Science Complex
Other recreational activities
Capital outlay
Capital outlay less than $5,000
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Issuance costs

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from long-term debt
Debt issuance bond premium
Proceeds from insurance
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance - January 1

Fund balance - December 31 (Note 12)

BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Special Park Government
Assessment Improvement Construction Debt Service Construction
General Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

$ 8705544 $ 2,566,469 $ - $ 1,941,903 $ - $ 146,327 $ 13,360,243
1,394,140 - 1,120,994 - - - 2,515,134
6,183,408 - - - - - 6,183,408
92,722 - 12,697 14,969 - 4,013 124,401
395,896 - 904,538 306,572 - 250,000 1,857,006
82,771 - 409,919 - - - 492,690
27,076 - 371,481 128,990 - - 527,547
55,853 130,000 - - - - 185,853
16,937,410 2,696,469 2,819,629 2,392,434 - 400,340 25,246,282
2,199,439 - - 68,784 - - 2,268,223
3,078,081 - 330 - - - 3,078,411
1,990,965 - - - - - 1,990,965
527,824 - - - - - 527,824
1,193,707 - - - - - 1,193,707
561,930 - - - - - 561,930
1,087,775 - - - - - 1,087,775
191,742 - - - - - 191,742
157,839 - - - - - 157,839
382,862 - - - - - 382,862
131,458 - - - - - 131,458
233,961 - - - - - 233,961
101,182 - - - - - 101,182
2,538,174 - - - - - 2,538,174
679,389 - 3,022,351 1,887,127 - 452,878 6,041,745
55,624 10,483 - - - - 66,107
1,129,364 2,336,393 4,092,702 38,300 - - 7,596,759
302,593 447,171 24,635 11,700 - - 786,099

- - 104,814 - - - 104,814
16,543,909 2,794,047 7,244,832 2,005,911 - 452,878 29,041,577
393,501 (97,578) (4,425,203) 386,523 - (52,538) (3,795,295)

- - 5,915,000 - - - 5,915,000

- - 254,134 - - 254,134

52,332 - - - - - 52,332
305,000 - 100,000 - 421,500 - 826,500
- (125,000) (421,500) (240,000) - (40,000) (826,500)

357,332 (125,000) 5,847,634 (240,000) 421,500 (40,000) 6,221,466
750,833 (222,578) 1,422,431 146,523 421,500 (92,538) 2,426,171
3,034,602 1,845,544 870,036 519,952 1,010,078 331,892 7,612,104
$ 3785435 $ 1,622,966 $ 2,292,467 $ 666,475 $ 1431578 $ 239,354 $ 10,038,275

See Notes to the Financial Statements

- 26 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period.
Capital asset additions
Current year depreciation

Total

Governmental funds do not report donated capital assets as expenditures or revenue.
However, in the statement of activities, donations of capital assets are recorded as
donation revenue.

Based on receipt dates, some revenues are not considered available revenue and are
unavailable in the governmental funds.
Delinquent property taxes
Capital grants and contributions

Total

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Amortization of premium/discount on bond issues
Net decrease in post-retirement obligations
Net increase in compensated absences
Net increase in interest payable
Net decrease in net pension liability

Total
Changes in deferred inflows and outflows relating to net pension liability

Special assessment proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position.

Proceeds from long-term debt provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Proceeds from bonds payable
Bond premium

Governmental funds report the entire net sales price (proceeds) from sale of an asset as
revenue because it provides current financials resources. In contrast, the Statement of
Activities reports only the gain or loss on the sale of the assets. Thus the change in net

position differs from the change in fund balance by the net book value of the asset disposed.

Repayment of principal on long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
the governmental funds. However, there is no effect on net position. The following
are principal payments on long-term debt during the year ended December 31, 2019:

Principal payment on bonds payable

Total

Change in net position

See Notes to the Financial Statements

-27 -

$ 2,426,171
6,041,745
(4,039,524)
2,002,221
975,950
(40,985)
(505,726)
(546,711)
46,139
71,385
(90,570)
(11,194)
1,236,442
1,252,202
(1,543,321)
(1,120,994)
(5,915,000)
(254,134)
(4,520)
7,596,759
7,596,759
$ 4,868,623



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District (District) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's accounting policies
are described below.

Reporting Entity

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, reporting entity's financial
statements should include all component units over which that component unit (oversight unit)
exercises oversight responsibility. Criteria used to determine a potential component unit
include: is it legally separate, does it have separate corporate powers, who appoints the
governing board, is there fiscal dependency, can the oversight unit impose its will, and is there a
financial benefit/burden relationship.

Based upon the criteria set by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the Bismarck
Park District Building Authority is a component unit. All board members of the Building Authority
are board members or management of the District. These financial statements include the
financial information of the District and its component unit, the Bismarck Park District Building
Authority, which is shown as a blended component unit. The activity of this component unit is
recorded within the construction fund.

Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which
provide a more detail level of financial information.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the District. The effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segments. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for the governmental funds. Major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

-28 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurements focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The special assessment fund is used to account for the proceeds of certain specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for District wide improvements.

The park improvement fund is used to account for the District's expenditures for major capital
acquisitions and improvements.

The construction fund is used to account for major capital acquisitions and construction projects.

The debt service fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

The government construction fund is used to account for capital projects. This fund is not
required to be shown as a major fund, but the Park District has elected to show as such as it is
the only non-major governmental fund.

Governmental Fund Types

The general fund accounts for all governmental financial resources, except for those required to
be accounted for in other funds.

-29-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt
service or capital projects.

Debt Service Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

Capital Project Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays including the acquisition and
construction of district facilities and other capital assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term
certificates of deposit with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the
government.

Investments

Investments are carried at fair value. North Dakota state statute authorizes government entities
to invest their surplus funds in: a) Bonds, treasury bills and notes, or other securities that are a
direct obligation of, or an obligation insured or guaranteed by, the treasury of the United States,
or its agencies, instrumentality's, or organizations created by an act of Congress, b) Securities
sold under agreements to repurchase written by a financial institution in which the underlying
securities for the agreement to repurchase are of the type listed above, c¢) Certificates of Deposit
fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, d) Obligations of the state, and e)
Commercial paper issued by a United States corporation rated in the highest quality category by
at least two annually recognized rating agencies and matures in two hundred seventy days or
less.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful
receivables. Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying
troubled accounts and by using historical experience applied to an aging of accounts. Accounts
receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable
previously written off are recorded when received. A receivable is considered to be past due if
any portion of the receivable is outstanding for more than 30 days. There is no allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable as of December 31, 2020, as management considers all
receivables collectible.

Taxes Receivable

The taxes receivables consist of uncollected and collected but not remitted, property taxes as of
December 31, 2020 for both current and prior years.

-30 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental activities
column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in
excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date
of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the District is depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 7-25
Machinery and equipment 5-10
Infrastructure 25

Compensated Absences

All full-time employees of the District are covered by a compensated absences policy including
annual leave and sick leave. Unused annual leave can be accumulated and carried over to a
maximum of 360 hours to the next calendar year. Unused sick leave may be accumulated to a
maximum of 960 hours. Upon termination of employment, employees receive 100 percent of
their unused annual leave pay at their rate of pay on the date of termination. If termination of
employment occurs after five years of employment, employees receive 25 percent of their
unused sick pay at their rate of pay on the date of termination.

Post-Retirement Benefit Obligations

The District operates a single-employer other post-employment benefit plan that provides
supplemental pay and health insurance benefits to employees of the District who have met
certain criteria. This liability is shown as post-retirement benefit obligations on the government-
wide financial statements. See Note 14 for more details.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities fund type statement of net
position. Bond issuance costs are expensed in the year of occurrence. Bond premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the straight-line method,
which approximates the effective interest method. In the fund financial statements,
governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance
costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while

-31-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

discount on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflow of resources and
liabilities plus deferred inflow of resources. Net investment in capital assets, consists of the
remaining un-depreciated cost of the asset less the outstanding debt associated with the
purchase or construction of the related asset.

Net position is reported as restricted when external creditors, grantors, or other governmental
organizations imposed specific restrictions on the District. External restrictions may be imposed
through state or local laws, and grant or contract provisions.

Fund Balance Classifications

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five
classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these
resources. The non-spendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be
spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form - inventories; or (b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. The spendable portion of the fund balance
comprises the remaining four classifications: restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Restricted — This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either (a)
externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b)
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the park board-the District’'s highest level of
decision-making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose
unless the park board removes the specified use by taking the same type of action imposing the
commitment. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing
resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual
requirements.

Assigned — This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the District’s “intent” to be
used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. The park board and
executive director have the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.
Assigned fund balances include all remaining amounts (except negative balances) that are
reported in governmental funds, other than the General Fund, that are not classified as non-
spendable and are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned — This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. It is also
used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, the District’s preference

is to first use restricted resources, then unrestricted resources—committed, assigned, and
unassigned—in order as needed.

-32-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

The District has set a General fund minimum fund balance target at not less than 15% of the
current year General fund expenditures and transfers out.

Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has
one item reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the statement of net position, deferred
outflow - pension, which represents the actuarial differences within the Bismarck City Employee
Pension Plan (BCEPP). See Note 13 for further details.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and balance sheet will sometimes report a
separate section of deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
District has one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that
qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, delinquent property taxes
(unavailable revenue), is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues, from two sources: property taxes and special
assessments. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the
period that the amounts become available. The District also has one item reported on the
statement of net position as cost sharing defined benefit pension plan, which represents
actuarial differences within the BCEPP.

Interfund Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in
the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are
reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as
residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers.

Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Bismarck City Employee Pension Plan (BCEPP) and additions to / deductions
from BCEPP fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by BCEPP. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

-33-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on the assessed property on January 1. A five
percent reduction is allowed if paid by February 15. Penalty and interest are added March 15 if
the first half of the taxes has not been paid. Additional penalties are added October 15, if not
paid. Taxes are collected by the county and usually remitted monthly to the District.

Property tax revenue in the governmental funds is recognized in compliance with National
Council of Government Accounting (NCGA) Interpretation 3, “Revenue Recognition — Property
Taxes”. This interpretation states that property tax revenue is recorded when it becomes
available. Available means when due, or past due and receivable within the current period and
collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Such time thereafter shall not exceed 60 days.
Property tax revenue is recorded as revenue in the year the tax is levied in the government —
wide financial statements. Property taxes are limited by state laws. All district tax levies are in
compliance with state laws.

Grant Revenue Recognition

The governmental grants received by the District are recognized as revenue at the time eligible
expenditures are incurred on the government wide statements. Governmental grants must be
received within 60 days after year-end to be considered available and recognized as revenue
within the funds. The grants are accounted for as exchange transactions due to the
government’s solicitation of proposals, approval of allowable expenditures and eligibility
requirements. Grant funds received prior to expenditure are recorded as refundable advances
on the statement of net position. These funds are to be repaid to the grantor if they are not
used on eligible expenditures.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 DEPOSITS
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk associated with the failure of a depository financial institution. In
the event of a depository financial institution’s failure the District would not be able to recover its
deposits or collateralized securities that are in the possession of the outside parties. The
District does not have a formal policy regarding deposits. The fair value of the collateral
pledged must be equal to or greater than 110% of the deposits not covered by insurance or
bonds.

The District maintains cash on deposit at various financial institutions. The amounts on deposit
are insured by the FDIC up to $250,000 per financial institution. At December 31, 2020, none of
the District’'s deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk, as all deposits were covered by
FDIC coverage.

-34 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020
NOTE 3 BOARD DESIGNATIONS OF CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
General Fund
A reserve of $50,000 was approved by the board for golf dome replacement.
Park Improvement Fund
The park improvement fund is used to account for the District's expenditures for major capital
acquisitions and improvements that are legally restricted to expenditures for park improvements.
The outstanding balance at December 31, 2020 was $600,000.
NOTE4 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
Special Assessment Fund
The special assessment fund is used to account for the proceeds of certain specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for District wide improvements. The
outstanding balance at December 31, 2020 was $1,483,846.
Park Improvement Fund
The park improvement fund is used to account for the District's expenditures for major capital
acquisitions and improvements that are legally restricted to expenditures for park improvements.
The outstanding balance at December 31, 2020 was $1,532,086.
Debt Service Fund
The October 1, 2020 Park District Revenue Bonds require a Reserve Fund Deposit.
Withdrawals from the Reserve Fund Deposit may be only for the payment of the principal and
interest of the bonds. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2020 was $1,431,578.
NOTE 5 INVESTMENTS

The District maintains investments at those institutions, in accordance with state statutes,
authorized by the Commission.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The price of a debt security typically moves in the opposite
direction of the change in interest rates. The District does not have a formal investment policy
that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to potential fair value
losses arising from future changes in interest rates.

-35-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

At December 31, 2020, the District’s investments were as follows:

Total Fair Less Than 6-10 More Than
Investment Type Value 1 Year 1-6 Years Years 10 Years
Government agencies $ 429,673 $ 429,673 $ - $ - $ -
Government bonds 2,407,045 2,407,045 - - -
2,836,718 $2,836,718 $ - $ - $ -
Investments not subject
to categorization:
Certificates of deposit 225,000
Total investments $3,061,718

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter-party to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The District does not have an investment policy that specifically addresses credit
risk.

At December 31, 2020, the credit ratings of the District’s investments were as follows:

Government Government Total Fair
S&P Credit Rating Agencies Bonds Value
A1+ $ - S -3 -
AA+ 429,673 - 429,673
NR - 2,407,045 2,407,045
Total debt securities $ 429,673 $2,407,045 $2,836,718

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, investments are grouped at fair value in three
levels, based on the markets in which the investments are traded and the reliability of the
assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels are:

Level 1:  Valuation is based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Valuation is based upon quote prices for similar assets in active markets, quote
prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, and model-based
valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the
market.

Level 3: Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use significant
assumptions not observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect
estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset.
Valuation techniques include use of option pricing models, discounted cash flow
models and similar techniques.

-306 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

The table below presents the balances of investments measured at fair value on a recurring
basis as of December 31, 2020.

Quoted Significant
Prices in Other Significant
Active Observable Unobservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3
Government agencies $ 429,673 § - 9 429,673  $ -
Government bonds 2,407,045 - 2,407,045 -
$ 2,836,718 $ - $ 283,718 $ -

NOTE6 CAPITAL ASSETS

The following schedule is a summary of the capital asset activity for the year ended December
31, 2020:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Gowvernmental capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
$ 6,970,387 $ 836,750 $ - $ 7,807,137
4,330,088 948,968 (4,285,676) 993,380
11,300,475 1,785,718 (4,285,676) 8,800,517
91,814,623 9,225,822 (37,460) 101,002,985
7,396,020 301,257 (22,455) 7,674,822
7,068,128 472,879 - 7,541,007
106,278,771 9,999,958 (59,915) 116,218,814
37,019,669 3,324,441 (32,940) 40,311,170
5,830,624 436,768 (22,455) 6,244,937
2,195,969 278,315 - 2,474,284
45,046,262 4,039,524 (55,395) 49,030,391
61,232,509 5,960,434 (4,520) 67,188,423
$ 72,532,984 $ 7,746,152 $(4,290,196) $ 75,988,940

-37-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

The District leases a bio-mass boiler building and the Capital lce Complex under capital leases.
The cost and accumulated amortization of the leased assets are as follows:

Capitalized leased buildings and improvements $3,150,000
Less: accumulated amortization (579,269)
$2,570,731

Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $184,921, and is included in
depreciation expense.

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental Activities:

Park Operations $2,200,848
Facilities / Recreation 1,838,676
Total depreciation expense - Governmental Activities $4,039,524

NOTE7 LONG-TERM DEBT
Debt Outstanding

The obligations under notes payable, bonds payable, revenue bonds payable, special
assessments debt and capital leases are scheduled as follows:

Outstanding
12/31/20
Revenue Bonds Payable:
$8,355,000 bonds dated October 1, 2019 to refund bonds that were previously taken out to acquire
and improve the BSC Aquatic & Wellness Center. The bonds are payable in variable annual principal
and semi-annual interest payments at 2.25% to 3.00% through April 1, 2033. Payments are to be
made from the Debt Service Fund. $ 7,505,000
$5,915,000 bonds dated October 1, 2020 to refund bonds that were taken out to finance the
Schaumberg Ice Arena Project. The bonds are payable in variable annual principal and semi-annual
interest payments at 0.30% to 2.00% through April 1, 2030. Payments are to be made from the Debt
Service Fund. 5,915,000
$13,420.000
Special Assessments Debt:
The special assessments are dated from 2002 through 2020. The maturity varies per issue but
extends through 2032. The interest rates are from 2.56% to 5.71%. Payments are to be made from
the Special Assessment Fund. $ 4,539,830
$1,400,000 bonds dated August 1, 2010 to finance park improvements. The bonds are payable in
variable annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at 1.4% to 3.6% through May 1, 2025.
The bonds are callable on May 1, 2016 and any date thereafter, in inverse order at par plus accrued
interest. Payments are to be made from the Special Assessment Fund. 550,000

-38 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

$750,000 bonds dated September 15, 2011 to finance park improvements. The bonds are payable in
variable annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at 1.15% to 3.25% through May 1, 2026.
The bonds are callable on May 1, 2017 and any date thereafter, in inverse order at par plus accrued
interest. Payments are to be made from the Special Assessment Fund.

$2,700,000 bonds dated October 1, 2012 to finance park improvements. The bonds are payable in
variable annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at 0.55% to 2.75% through May 1,
2027. Payments are to be made from the Special Assessment Fund.

$3,730,000 bonds dated April 18, 2013 to refund 2008 improvement bonds. The bonds are payable
in variable annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at 0.30% to 1.90% through May 1,
2023. Payments are to be made from the Special Assessment Fund.

$3,500,000 bonds dated October 1, 2014 to finance park improvements. The bonds are payable in
variable annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at 0.40% to 2.50% through May 1,
2026. Payments are to be made from the Special Assessment Fund.

$2,120,000 bonds dated April 1, 2015 to refund 2009 improvement bonds. The bonds are payable
in variable annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at 0.60% to 2.20% through May 1,
2024. Payments are to be made from the Special Assessment Fund.

$1,600,000 bonds dated February 1, 2017 to finance park improvements. The bonds are payable
in variable annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at 0.90% to 2.25% through May 1,
2025. Payments are to be made from the Special Assessment Fund.

$1,690,000 bonds dated June 15, 2018 to finance park improvements. The bonds are payable in
variable annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at 1.85% to 2.70% through May 1,
2028. Payments are to be made from the Special Assessment Fund.

$3,015,000 bonds dated July 1, 2019 to finance park improvements. The bonds are payable in
variable annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at 2.00% to 4.00% through May 1,
2031. Payments are to be made from the Special Assessment Fund.

Capital Leases:

$650,000 lease dated October 11, 2010 for the construction of a building to house the biomass
heating unit at the Aquatic Wellness Center. Due in ten semi-annual principal and interest
payments of $23,553 at 3.898% interest until October 11, 2015, with one final payment of principal
and interest for $532,859 due November 11, 2015. This lease was refinanced on November 5,
2015. New lease terms require ten semi-annual principal and interest payments of $25,000 at
3.070% until November 5, 2020, with one final payment of principal and interest for $352,311 due
December 5, 2020. Payments are to be made from the Construction Fund.

$2,500,000 lease dated December 1, 2016 for the Schaumberg Ice Arena. Due in six annual

principal and interest payments of $434,000 and semi-annual interest payments until June 30,
2022. Payments are to be made from the Park Improvement Fund.

-39 -

$ 350,000

1,335,000

1,190,000

1,910,000

995,000

1,010,000

1,380,000

2,780,000
$16.039,830

$ 352,311

853,063

1,2 74



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported
in the Statement of Net Position:

Balance -
January 1 Balance - Due Within
(Restated) Additions Reductions December 31 One Year
Compensated Absences $ 695,907 $ 326,693 $ 236,123 $ 786,477 $ 241,560
Post-Retirement Benefit Obligations 508,869 - 71,385 437,484 42,915
Net Pension Liability 2,721,922 - 1,236,441 1,485,481 -
Unamortized Bond Premium 211,678 254,134 46,139 419,673 -
Bonds and notes payable
Revenue Bonds Payable 8,355,000 5,915,000 850,000 13,420,000 1,360,000
Special Assessments Debt 16,772,924 1,603,299 2,336,393 16,039,830 2,479,952
Capital Leases 5,615,412 352,311 4,762,349 1,205,374 494,594
Total bonds and notes payable 30,743,336 7,870,610 7,948,742 30,665,204 4,334,546
Total long-term liabilities $ 34,881,712 $ 8,451,437 $ 9,538,830 $ 33,794,319 $ 4,619,021

Assets of the General Fund are used to pay compensated absences. See Note 13 for more
information on the net pension liability and Note 14 for more information on the post-retirement

benefit obligation.

Debt Service Requirements

Annual requirements to amortize outstanding debt at December 31, 2020 are as follows:

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026 - 2030
2031 - 2035

Totals

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026 - 2030
2031 - 2035

Totals

Revenue Bonds Payable

Principal Interest
$ 1,360,000 $ 303,913
965,000 279,863
985,000 218,173
1,010,000 231,788
1,040,000 206,763
4,400,000 564,000
3,660,000 179,444
$ 13,420,000 $ 1,983,941

Capital Leases

Principal Interest
$ 494,594 $ 19,368
496,005 12,995
68,876 6,124
70,839 4,161
75,060 2,142
$ 1,205,374 $ 44,790

- 40 -

Special Assessments

Principal Interest
$ 2,479,952 $ 367,545
2,392,802 337,373
2,394,001 274,322
1,919,571 214,991
1,681,694 167,121
5,171,810 418,792
$ 16,039,830 $ 1,780,143
Total
Principal Interest
$ 4,334,546 $ 690,825
3,853,807 630,230
3,447,877 498,618
3,000,410 450,940
2,796,754 376,026
9,571,810 982,792
3,660,000 179,444
$ 30,665,204 $ 3,808,874




BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

NOTE8 CHARGES FOR SERVICES

The District collects fees for the various programs and services it provides to the community.
Charges for services revenue consists of the following programs:

Golf $ 1,670,858
BLAST and Activity Centers 824,792
Aquatic Center 815,370
Adult Programs 422,714
Ice Arenas 522,103
Capital Racquet Fitness Center 305,453
Youth Programs 242,715
Sibley Park 388,428
County Parks 136,124
Pools 226,697
McDowell Dam 300,503
Other Recreational Activities 274,223
High Prairie Arts and Science Complex 45,108
World War Memorial Building 8,320
Total charges for services $ 6,183,408

NOTE9 FACILITY AGREEMENTS

The District has many agreements with various organizations for use of the District’s facilities.
Revenue terms differ by organization depending upon the organization’s needs. Revenue is
charged differently to the organizations as follows: fees paid are dependent upon the number of
participants or the number of games, seasonal rental, monthly rental or rental based upon the
organization’s sales. The agreements terminate between January 2021 and December 2036.
The estimated rental income to be received in future periods under those agreements that are
fixed fees are as follows:

2021 $ 370,276
2022 147,588
2023 25,820
2024 25,820
2025 24,700
Thereafter 56,600
Total $ 650,804

-41 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

NOTE 10 PUBLIC RISK POOL

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The District participates in the North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF), which provides
liability coverage to the District.

The current policy has various deductibles. The NDIRF was established during 1986 to assist
state agencies and political subdivisions within the State of North Dakota in obtaining liability
insurance at reasonable rates. Each participating entity is entitled to one vote per $1,000 of
annual fund contribution, provided that each entity receives at least one vote and all fractions
are rounded to the nearest whole vote. The NDIRF is governed by a 9-member board of
directors that is elected by the participants in such a manner to ensure a cross-section from the
various types of participating entities. Currently there are approximately 2,000 participating
entities. To establish the fund, each entity was required to purchase a surplus note. The note
matured during 1991. The District receives conferment of benefits towards its insurance
premiums as payment on the surplus note.

Also, when accumulated reserves exceed the actuarial estimated reserves, the excess may be
distributed to the entities.

The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including workers
compensation, auto insurance, employee health and accident insurance.

The amount of any settlement did not exceed insurance coverage for any of the prior three fiscal
years.

NOTE 11 TRANSFERS

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in
the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are
reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as
residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers.

The following is a list of transfers for the year ended December 31, 2020:

Transfer To:

Park
Improvement Total Transfer
General Fund Fund Debt Service From

Transfer from:
Special Assessment Fund $ 125000 $ -3 - 8 125,000
Construction Fund 140,000 100,000 - 240,000
Government Construction Fund 40,000 - - 40,000
Park Improvement Fund - - 421,500 421,500
Total Transfer To $ 305,000 $ 100,000 $ 421,500 $ 826,500

-42 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

The above transfers into the general fund were made to cover administrative fees of bond
issues and Riverfront maintenance, create a dome replacement emergency reserve and to fund
the bond payment for the Schaumberg Arena and Pebble Creek Golf Course improvements.
The above transfers into the Park Improvement Fund were to fund the Capital lce Complex
pledge financing lease payment. The above transfer into the debt service fund was to fund the
issuance of 2020 Revenue bonds.

NOTE 12 FUND BALANCES

At December 31, 2020, a summary of the governmental fund balance classifications are as
follows:

Special Park Government
Assessment  Improvement  Construction Debt Service Construction
General Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Restricted for:
Debt Service $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,431,578 $ - $ 1,431,578
Capital Projects - - 1,532,086 - - - 1,532,086
Special Assessments - 1,622,966 - 1,622,966
Committed to:
Capital Projects - 600,000 - - - 600,000
Golf Dome Roof Replacement 50,000 - - -
Assigned to:
Capital Projects - 160,381 666,475 - 239,354 1,066,210
Unassigned 3,735,435 - - 3,735,435

$ 3,785,435 $ 1,622,966 $ 2,292,467 $ 666,475 $ 1,431,578 $ 239,354 $ 10,038,275

NOTE 13 BISMARCK CITY EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN (BCEPP)
Plan Description

The District participates in the Bismarck City Employee Pension Plan (BCEPP). The BCEPP is
a cost sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement system between the City of
Bismarck and the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District. The BCEPP document provides for
all full-time City and District employees with the exclusion of sworn police officers, non-sworn
members of the police department who began employment before December 31, 2006 and
members of the firefighter’s relief fund.

Plan Membership

Memberships begin with their hire date before January 1, 2020 and are vested after five years
of service. Membership in the BCEPP on January 1, 2020 is as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 241
Terminated employees — vested 67
Active employees:
Vested 303
Non-vested 168
Total members 77

-43 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Plan Administration

North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) 40-46 and in accordance with Chapter 9-07 of the
Bismarck Code of Ordinance grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to
the City Commission. Management of the BCEPP plan is vested in the Board of Trustees which
consists of the City Administrator and all department heads with the exception of the Chief of
Police.

Benefits Provided

Benefit provisions, amendments, and all requirements are established under the authority of the
City Commission. Employees may be eligible for early or normal retirement, as well as death
benefits. Normal retirement age for full benefits is age 62. Employees who retire at or after age
62 with 5 years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly
for life, in an amount equal to 1.75% of the average of the member's highest 36 months base
salary for each full and fractional year of contributing service before January 2005 and 2.25%
for contributing service on or after January 2005. Married participants receive a joint and two-
thirds to survivor annuity while single participants receive a life only annuity. There are no
provisions with respect to automatic and post-retirement benefit increases. Employees with 5
years of credited service may retire at an earlier age and receive an actuarially reduced
retirement benefit. Benefit terms may be amended in accordance with North Dakota Century
Code 40-46. Chapter 9-07 of the Bismarck Code of Ordinance grants the authority to the Board
of City Commissioners to establish and amend the benefit terms.

Prior to January 2005, employees directed the investment of their contribution utilizing a
contracted City investment manager. These employees were eligible to receive a distribution of
the interest earned on the contributions in excess of 5% upon retirement. Effective January 1,
2005, all employee contributions are invested with the City pension funds and individual self-
directed accounts were discontinued. As of December 31, 2004, interest earned in excess of
5% for the individual employee accounts has been transferred to an Employee Excess
Retirement Fund and the excess funds in the individual employee accounts continue to be self-
directed.

Employees or designated beneficiary that separate from the District before attaining the five-
year service credit are refunded the employee’s accumulated contribution plus interest earnings
at 5% per annum.

Contributions

Employee Contributions - Participating active employees contribute to the plan at a rate of 5% of
covered payroll. Employees or designated beneficiary that separate from the District before
attaining the five-year service credit are refunded the accumulated contributions plus interest
earnings at 5% per annum. Member contributions are made by payroll deductions applied to
regular bi-weekly pay.

Employer Contributions - Employer contributions are based on an actuarial formula identified as
entry age normal cost method. This method produces an employer contribution rate consisting
of an amount for normal cost and an amount for amortization of the net pension liability over a
closed period of 30 years. The annual contribution is recommended to the City Commission
and considered for approval and adoption.

-44 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Investments

Investment Policy - The BCEPP investment policy and asset class allocations are established
and may be amended by the Board of Trustees by a majority vote of its members. It is the
policy of the BCEPP to pursue an investment strategy to improve the Plan’s funding status to
protect and sustain current and future benefits, minimize the employee and employer
contributions, avoid substantial volatility in required contribution rates and fluctuations in the
Plan’s funding status and to accumulate a funding surplus to provide increases in retiree
payments to preserve the purchasing power of their retirement benefits.

BCEPP Board has entered into a contract with the North Dakota State Investment Board (SIB)
for investment services as allowed under NDCC 21-10-06 and to implement these policies by
investing the assets of the Fund in the manner provided in NDCC 21-10-07, the prudent investor
rule. Management’s responsibility that is not assigned to the SIB in Chapter 21-10 of the NDCC
is delegated to the SIB who must establish written policies for the operation of the investment
program consistent with this investment policy.

The BCEPP Board of Trustee’s adopted a long-term investment horizon and asset allocation
policy for the management of the fund assets. Asset allocation targets are established using an
asset-liability analysis designed to determine an acceptable volatility target for the plan and an
optimal asset allocation policy mix. The asset-liability analysis considers both sides of the plan
balance sheet, utilizing both quantitative and qualitative inputs, in order to estimate the potential
impact of various asset class mixes on key measures of total plan risk. The following was the
plans asset allocation as of December 31, 2020:

Target Allocation

Asset Class
Large domestic equity 15%
Small domestic equity 10%
Developed international equity 12%
Emerging international equity 5%
Private equity 4%
Domestic fixed income 30%
International fixed income 4%
Real estate 10%
Infrastructure 5%
Timber 5%

100%

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets

The long-term expected rate of return of 7.5% on plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return
were developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates to return by the target
asset allocation percentage. The projected 10-year geometric real rates of return by asset class
are summarized in the following table:

-45 -



BISMAR

CK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

DECEMBER 31, 2020

Long-Term

Expected Real

Asset Class Rate of Return

Large domestic equity 7.60%
Small domestic equity 7.90%
Developed international equity 7.60%
Emerging international equity 8.00%
Private equity 8.80%
Domestic fixed income 3.25%
International fixed income 2.85%
Real estate 6.40%
Infrastructure 7.50%
Timber 7.10%

Actuarial Assumptions

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Mortality rate

Asset valuation method
Valuation method

Inflation rate

Investment rate of return

1/1/2020
Entry Age Normal

Level % of payroll over remaining
amortization period-closed

19

Based on RP-2014 generational mortality
projected with Scale MP-2019

Market

3.00%
7.50%

Projected salary increases:

0-9 years of service

10+ years of service

5.00%
4.00%

Post retirement cost of living adjustments None

Sensitivity of the Net Pensio
The net pension liability of the

what the BCEPP net pension |
percent lower (6.5 percent) or

Employer's proportionate

n Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

BCEPRP is calculated at a discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as
iability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
1 percent higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)

share

share of the net pension liability $ 3,706,184 $ 1,485,481 $ (377,642)

- 46 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

The District’s portion of the net pension liability for the BCEPP was recorded at $1,485,481 as of
December 31, 2020. The calculation was determined by an actuarial valuation based on the
present value of future payroll. The District's proportionate share was 14.94%, which is an
increase of 0.47% from the District’s proportionate share as of December 31, 2019.

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources
The District recognized pension expense of $306,879 during the year ended December 31,

2020. Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pensions are from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 280,322 $ (160,106)
Changes in assumptions 526,777 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments - (501,318)
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 79,199 (1,585)
Employer contributions subsequent to measurement date 381,662 -
Total $1,267,960 $ (663,009)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending December 31:

2021 $ 81,176
2022 68,527
2023 193,688
2024 (136,813)
2025 34,843
Thereafter (18,132)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the City of
Bismarck’s separately issued financial report. The financial report is available on the City of

Bismarck’s website at www.bismarcknd.gov.

-47 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

NOTE 14 OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The District offers and administers a single-employer other post-employment benefit plan. A
separately issued plan report is not issued, as there are no assets set aside for the plan. There
are no required employer or employee contributions to the plan. Benefits may be changed by
revision of the Board of Commissioners. The plan is only available for those employees who
were hired by the District prior to November 16, 2017.

Full-time employees with a hire date prior to November 16, 2017 who have worked for the
District for fifteen years or more are eligible for an early retirement option within six months of
the employee’s 59th birthday. Under this early retirement option, the District will continue to pay
for the employee’s health insurance until the employee reaches age 62 with the amount paid not
to exceed the full rate paid for current employees.

From age 62 to 65 of the employee, the District will pay a portion of the health insurance,
ranging from 50% to 100% of the health insurance premium, dependent upon the number of
years of service by the employee.

Supplemental pay is available to employees who choose early retirement. Employees are
eligible for supplemental pay from age 59 to age 62. The payment will be half of the employee’s
monthly gross salary less pension payments. A minimum payment of $250 per month will be
paid if the employee’s pension payment is greater than one half the employee’s monthly salary.
The supplemental payment is capped at $500 per month.

Membership in the plan for early retirement as of December 31, 2020 is as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 1
Active employees:
Vested -
Non-vested 43

Membership in the plan for health insurance as of December 31, 2020 is as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 2
Active employees:
Vested 1
Non-vested 46

As there are fewer than 100 plan members, the District has elected to use the alternative
measurement method. The District has made assumptions on expected beginning date of
benefits, turnover (38.05%), and healthcare cost (4.5%) based on historical results the District
has experienced. Marital status is assumed to be the same as the employee’s current status
when projecting the liability. The District has used a discount rate of 2% for early retirement
benefits and 2.5% for health insurance benefits to arrive at a present value of the other post-
employment benefit liability, which is $437,484 as of December 31, 2020.

-48 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Schedules of the change in the OPEB liability is as follows:

Early Retirement Benefits

OPEB Liability
Service cost $ (44,074)
Benefit paid 21,500
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (22,574)
OPERB Liability - Beginning 170,854
OPEB Liability - Ending $ 148,280

Health Insurance Benefits

OPEB Liability
Service cost $ (27,865)
Benefit paid (20,946)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (48,811)
OPERB Liability - Beginning 338,015
OPEB Liability - Ending $ 289,204

The OPEB liability for early retirement benefits is calculated at a discount rate of 2.0 percent, as
well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percent lower (1.0 percent) or 1 percent higher (3.0 percent) than the current rate:

1.00% 2.00% 3.00%

Net OPEB liability for early
retirement benefits $ 168,360 $ 148,280 $ 129,422

The net OPEB liability for health insurance benefits is calculated at a discount rate of 2.5
percent, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1 percent lower (1.5 percent) or 1 percent higher (3.5 percent) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
1.50% 2.50% 3.50%
Net OPEB liability for
health insurance benefits $ 330,390 $ 289,204 $ 256,493

-49 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

The net OPEB liability for early retirement benefits is calculated using a 4.5 percent increase in
health care costs, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
healthcare rate that is 1 percent lower (3.5 percent) or 1 percent higher (5.5 percent) than the
current rate:

Current Health
1% Decrease Insurance Rate 1% Increase
3.50% 4.50% 5.50%

Net OPEB liability for early
retirement benefits $ 133,152 $ 148,279 $ 166,406

The net OPEB liability for health insurance benefits is calculated using a 4.5 percent increase in
health care costs, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
healthcare rate that is 1 percent lower (3.5 percent) or 1 percent higher (5.5 percent) than the
current rate:

Current Health
1% Decrease Insurance Rate 1% Increase
3.50% 4.50% 5.50%

Net OPEB liability for
health insurance benefits $ 170,981 $ 289,204 $ 209,622

NOTE 15 COMMITMENTS

As of December 31, 2020, the District has the following outstanding commitments for on-going
capital projects.

Park shop maintenance facility $ 1,684,351
Other miscellaneous capital projects 381,535
$ 2,065,886

NOTE 16 TAX ABATEMENTS

The City of Bismarck provides five tax abatement programs which includes a Commercial and
Residential Renaissance Zone Program, New or Expanding Business Exemptions, and a
Commercial and Residential Remodeling Exemption.

As of December 31, 2020, the Renaissance Zone Property Tax Exemptions under North Dakota
Century Code 40-63, is for Commercial and Residential buildings located within the renaissance
zone that allow for the property to be excluded for up to five years, provided the City approves
the exemption. A renaissance zone is a geographical area that the City applies to the State
Department of Commerce to designate a portion of the City into a renaissance zone.

The Renaissance Zone Program for commercial and residential properties was established in
March 2001 and now encompasses a 39 block area in the downtown area. The purpose of the

-50 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

zone is to encourage reinvestment in downtown properties by providing property tax incentives
to commercial and residential owners. There are four different type of Renaissance Zone
projects that qualify for property tax exemptions: rehabilitation, purchase with major
improvements, purchase only, and historical preservation and renovation. A Renaissance Zone
project must be approved by both the City of Bismarck and the North Dakota Department of
Commerce before qualifying activity occurs.

New or Expanding Business Exemption under North Dakota Century Code 40-57.1 provides
property tax abatements by assisting in establishing industrial plants, expanding and retaining
existing businesses. A property tax exemption allows for the property to be excluded for up to
five years. The property must have prior certification as a primary sector business by the North
Dakota Department of Commerce. A partial or complete exemption from ad valorem taxation
under this section for retail sector projects may receive a partial or complete exemption from the
City Commission.

The Commercial and Residential Remodeling Exemption under North Dakota Century Code 40-
57.02.2 provides property tax abatements by assisting in incentives for remodeling properties
that are 30 years or older. This exemption will be for commercial and residential remodeling
projects and will only include additions for residential structures. The exemption will be for a
maximum of three years. The City Commission must approve the application prior to the
exemption.

The amount of taxes abated for the year ended December 31, 2020 for the District was as
follows:

Renaissance Zone Exemption - Commercial $35,330
Renaissance Zone Exemption - Residential 5,840
Remodeling Exemption - Residential 111

$41,281

NOTE 17 NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This
Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that were
previously classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. Under this Statement, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing
the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. This
Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier application is
encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period, establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for
financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result,
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical

-51-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. The requirements
of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Earlier
application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, provides a single method of reporting
conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminates diversity in practice associated with (1)
commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations,
and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement clarifies the existing definition of a conduit debt
obligation; establishes that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishes
standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations;
and improves required note disclosures. This Statement also addresses arrangements—often
characterized as leases—that are associated with conduit debt obligations. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. Earlier
application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, provides additional guidance to improve consistency
of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues identified during the application of
certain GASB statements. This statement provides accounting and financial reporting
requirements for specific issues related to leases, intra-entity transfers of assets,
postemployment benefits, government acquisitions, risk financing and insurance-related activity
of public entity risk pools, fair value measurements and derivative instruments. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, provides guidance to
address accounting and financial reporting implications that result from the replacement of an
interbank offered rate (IBOR), most notable, the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). As a
result of global reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current form at
the end of 2021, prompting governments to amend or replace financial instruments for the
purpose of replacing LIBOR with other reference rates, by either changing the reference rate or
adding or changing fallback provisions related to the reference rate. This statement provides
exceptions and clarifications regarding hedging derivative instruments for such transactions that
result from the replacement of IBOR. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability
Payment Arrangements, improves financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-
private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs) and also provides guidance for
accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements (APAs). The statement
provides definitions of PPPs and APAs and provides uniform guidance on accounting and
financial reporting for transactions that meet those definitions. A PPP is an arrangement in
which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator (a governmental or
nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate
or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP
asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. An APA is an
arrangement in which a government compensates an operator for services that may include
designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for
a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. The requirements of this

-52-



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods
thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Arrangements provides guidance on
the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology
arrangements (SBITAs). A SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to
use another party’s (a SBITA vendor’s) information technology (IT) software, alone or in
combination with tangible capital assets (the underlying IT assets), as specified in the contract
for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Under this Statement, a
government generally should recognize a right-to use subscription asset—an intangible asset—
and a corresponding subscription liability. The requirements of this Statement will improve
financial reporting by establishing a definition for SBITAs and providing uniform guidance for
accounting and financial reporting for transactions that meet that definition. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting
periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement
No. 32 provides additional guidance for determining whether a primary government is financially
accountable for a potential component unit. This Statement requires that the financial burden
criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, be applicable to only defined
benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that
meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, or
paragraph 3 of Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other
Than Pension Plans, respectively. This Statement (1) requires that a Section 457 plan be
classified as either a pension plan or an other employee benefit plan depending on whether the
plan meets the definition of a pension plan and (2) clarifies that Statement 84, as amended,
should be applied to all arrangements organized under IRC Section 457 to determine whether
those arrangements should be reported as fiduciary activities. The requirements of this
Statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the duties that a governing board
typically performs from treating the absence of a governing board the same as the appointment
of a voting majority of a governing board in determining whether they are financially accountable
for defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or other employee
benefit plans and (2) limit the applicability of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of
Statement 84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are
administered through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3
of Statement 74, respectively, are effective immediately. The requirements of this Statement
that are related to the accounting and financial reporting for Section 457 plans are effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021.

Management has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the District’s
financial statements.

NOTE 18 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

A prior period adjustment was recorded to decrease the net pension liability and increase
government-wide net position by $668,540. The prior period adjustment was a result of
changing the calculation date of the prior year BCEPP pension liability from January 1, 2020 to
January 1, 2019.

-53 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2020

NOTE 19 CONTINGENCIES

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants.
The expenditure of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with
items and conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the
general fund or other applicable funds. The District's management believes it has complied with
all applicable grant provisions. In the opinion of management, any possible disallowed claim
would not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position of the District as of
December 31, 2020.

NOTE 20 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
No significant events occurred subsequent to the District’'s year end. Subsequent events have

been evaluated through June 9, 2021, which is the date these financial statements were
available to be issued.

-54 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for senices
Investment earnings (loss)
Grants
Leases
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
General maintenance
Golf

Capital Racquet Fitness Center
Aquatic Wellness Center

Pools

Ice arenas
Forestry
Memorial Building
Sibley Park
County parks
McDowell Dam

High Prairie Arts and Science Complex
Other recreational activities

Capital outlay

Capital outlay less than $5,000

Debt senice:
Principal retirement

Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from insurance
Transfers in/out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources

over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - January 1
Fund balance - December 31

See Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

-b5.

Variance-

Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 8,622,000 $ 8,622,000 $ 8,705,544 $ 83,544
1,222,100 1,222,100 1,394,140 172,040
6,826,350 6,826,350 6,183,408 (642,942)
100,000 100,000 92,722 (7,278)
53,500 53,500 395,896 342,396
108,000 108,000 82,771 (25,229)
22,700 22,700 27,076 4,376
226,500 226,500 55,853 (170,647)
17,181,150 17,181,150 16,937,410 (243,740)
2,514,725 2,514,725 2,199,439 315,286
3,309,550 3,309,550 3,078,081 231,469
1,939,100 1,939,100 1,990,965 (51,865)
524,300 524,300 527,824 (3,524)
1,278,225 1,278,225 1,193,707 84,518
845,600 845,600 561,930 283,670
792,750 792,750 1,087,775 (295,025)
210,500 210,500 191,742 18,758
173,575 173,575 157,839 15,736
454,475 454,475 382,862 71,613
246,600 246,600 131,458 115,142
238,500 238,500 233,961 4,539
109,300 109,300 101,182 8,118
2,555,600 2,555,600 2,538,174 17,426
700,000 700,000 679,389 20,611
176,250 176,250 55,624 120,626
1,011,900 1,011,900 1,129,364 (117,464)
422,700 422,700 302,593 120,107
17,503,650 17,503,650 16,543,909 959,741
(322,500) (322,500) 393,501 716,001
12,500 12,500 52,332 39,832
310,000 310,000 305,000 (5,000)
322,500 322,500 357,332 34,832
$ - $ - 750,833 $ 750,833

3,034,602
$ 3,785,435



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Revenues:
Taxes
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Capital outlay <$5,000
Debt senvice:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Issuance costs

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out

Excess of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - January 1
Fund balance - December 31

Variance-
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 2,491,000 $ 2,491,000 $ 2,566,469 $ 75,469
130,000 130,000 130,000 -
2,621,000 2,621,000 2,696,469 75,469
36,300 36,300 10,483 25,817
2,350,000 2,350,000 2,336,393 13,607
439,700 439,700 447,171 (7,471)
20,000 20,000 - 20,000
2,846,000 2,846,000 2,794,047 51,953
(225,000) (225,000) (97,578) 127,422
(125,000) (125,000) (125,000) -
$ (350,000) $ (350,000) (222,578) $ 127,422
1,845,544
$ 1,622,966

See Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

-56 -



Employer’s proportion of the net
pension liability (asset)

Employer’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability
(asset)

Employer’s covered-employee
payroll

Employer’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability
(asset) as a percentage of its
covered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
liability

BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS *

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
14.94% 14.47% 14.52% 13.43% 12.71% 12.36%
$ 1,485,481 $ 2,721,922 $ 1,283,226 $ 1,315,443 $ 1,167,823 § 119,548
$ 3,518,193 $ 3,490,169 $ 3,223,952 $ 2,953,755 $ 2512248 $ 768,136
42.22% 77.99% 39.80% 44.53% 46.49% 0.155633898
91.64% 83.50% 91.78% 89.86% 89.88% 98.82%

* Complete data for this schedule is not available prior to 2015.

See Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

-57-



Actuarially determined
contribution

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined
contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Employer’s covered-employee
payroll

Contributions as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS *

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

$ 322595 $ 320293 $ 262486 $ 266849 $ 209905 $ 122,820

$ 381662 $ (373732) $ (345354) $ (322,654) $ (269,065) $ (243,218)

$ 704257 $ (53439) $ (82868) $ (55805) $ (59,160) $ (120,398)

$ 3756434  $ 3518193  § 3,490,169  $ 3223952  $ 2953755 $ 2,512,248
10.16% 10.62% 9.90% 10.01% 9.11% 9.68%

See Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

-58 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'’'S SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS *

Early Retirement Benefits

OPEB Liability
Service cost
Benefit paid
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

OPEB Liability - Beginning
OPERB Liability - Ending

Covered Payroll
District's Total OPEB Liability as a % of Covered Payroll
Health Insurance Benefits
OPEB Liability
Service cost
Benefit paid
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

OPEB Liability - Beginning
OPEB Liability - Ending

Covered Payroll

District's Total OPEB Liability as a % of Covered Payroll

* Complete data for this schedule is not available prior to 2018.

2020 2019 2018
$ (44074) $ 84581 $ 115413
21,500 (11,348) (17,792)
(22,574) 73,233 97,621
170,854 97,621 -
$ 148280 $ 170,854 $ 97,621
$2,510,639  $2,511,467  $2,530,464
5.91% 6.80% 3.86%
$ (27,865) $ 141,728 $ 112,786
(20,946) (34,440) (16,348)
(48,811) 107,288 96,438
338,015 230,727 134,289
$ 289204 § 338015 $ 230,727
$2,773,709  $2,765641  $2,832,811
10.43% 12.22% 8.14%

See Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

-59 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2020

NOTE1 BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The District's board adopts an annual budget on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States for the general and special assessment funds.

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

All divisions of the District submit requests for appropriation to the Executive Director of
Parks and Recreation so that a budget may be prepared.

The requests are reviewed in detail with the divisions.

The budget is prepared by fund, function and activity, and includes information on the
past year, current year estimates and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year.

By August 10" of each year, the preliminary budget is presented to the District's board
for review and approval.

The District's board holds public hearings and may modify the preliminary budget.

The final budget must be adopted before October 7" and submitted to the County
Auditor by October 10" of each year.

Project-length financial plans are adopted for all capital projects funds.

The current budget, except property taxes, may be amended during the year for any
revenues and appropriations not anticipated at the time the budget was prepared.

All appropriations lapse at year-end.

NOTE2 PENSION - CHANGE OF ASSUMPTIONS

Amounts reported in 2020 reflect actuarial assumption changes effective January 1, 2020 based
on the results of an actuarial experience study completed in 2019.

-60 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through the ND Forest Service
Cooperative Forestry Assistance

U.S. Department of Interior
Passed through ND Game and Fish Department
Sport Fish Restoration

Passed through the ND Department of Parks and Recreation
Outdoor Recreation Acquisition, Development and Planning

U.S. Department of Labor
Passed through Job Service of North Dakota
Unemployment Insurance

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through the ND Department of Parks and Recreation
Recreational Trails Program

U.S. Department of Treasury
Passed through ND Office of Management and Budget
Coronavirus Relief Fund - COVID-19

Passed through ND Department of Commerce
Coronavirus Relief Fund - COVID-19

Passed through ND Job Service
Coronavirus Relief Fund - COVID-19
Total for CFDA#21.019

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through the Department of Emergency Services

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters FEMA-4509-DR

Total Federal Financial Assistance

Federal

Pass-Through Entity CFDA
Identifying Number Number Expenditures
2018-EABATBTP-0011 10.664 $ 10,000
F19AF00029 15.605 2,625
P19AP00393 / 38-01327  15.916 357,107
17.225 29,035
FY202004 20.219 35,871
21.019 239,594
21.019 75,000
21.019 29,117
379,582
97.036 9,650
$ 787,999

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

-61 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or
limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE2 INDIRECT COST RATE

Bismarck Parks and Recreation District has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimus cost
rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “schedule) includes the
federal award activity of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District under programs of the
federal government for the year ended December 31, 2020. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District, it is not intended to and does not
present the financial position, change in net position, or cash flows of the Bismarck Parks and
Recreation District.

-62 -



BradyMartz

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Park Commissioners
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District
Bismarck, North Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Bismarck Parks and
Recreation District, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’'s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated June 9, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Bismarck
Parks and Recreation District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bismarck Parks and Recreation District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bismarck Parks and
Recreation District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

-63 - Make Every Day Count |



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Bismarck Parks and Recreation
District’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Bismarck
Parks and Recreation District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Torud, Mz~

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

June 9, 2021

-84 -
Make Every Day Count |



BradyMartz

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Park Commissioners
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District
Bismarck, North Dakota

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Bismarck Parks and Recreation District’s (District) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the District's major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2020. The District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
District’'s compliance.

- 65 - Make Every Day Count |



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Bismarck Parks and Recreation District complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been
identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, we did identity a certain deficiency in internal
control over compliance, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as item 2020-001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

The District’s response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The District’'s
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

- 606 -
Make Every Day Count |



The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Torud, Marts~

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

June 9, 2021

-B7 -
Make Every Day Count |



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _ no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X  none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes X __ no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X yes none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
Required to be reported in accordance with

2 CFR 200.516(a)? _yes X no
CEDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
21.019 Coronavirus Relief Fund
Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? _yes X _ no

-68 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

No findings to be reported under this section.

Section lll — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

2020-001: Activities Allowed or Unallowed/Allowable Costs/Cost Principles - CFDA
#21.019 (Coronavirus Relief Fund)

Criteria
Payroll costs charged to a federal program should be charged at the employee’s approved pay
rate.

Condition

Of the 30 payroll transactions tested, we noted two instances where the pay rate used to
summarize the amount of federal funds was not the approved pay rate. The employees were
paid the correct amounts, however the amounts included in federal funds was incorrect. The
mis-typed wage rates also impacted the amounts of benefits allocated.

Cause

The District did not correctly enter the pay rates for employees on the spreadsheet that were used to
determine the amount of federal funds requested for reimbursement. Although the spreadsheet
was reviewed, the accuracy of the data imputed was not all verified.

Effect

The District requested an incorrect amount of payroll and benefits of $3,261. The District had
additional expenses that qualified under the program to cover the amount of incorrect wages
and benefits requested.

Recommendation
We recommend the District review their internal controls over manual spreadsheets and add
additional controls to verify manually entered data.

Indication of Repeat Finding
This is a new finding.

Questioned Costs
None

Views of Responsible Officials
The District reviewed our internal controls over manual spreadsheets and added an additional
control to ensure manually entered data is verified.

-69 -



BISMARCK PARKS AND \
RECREATION DISTRICT L et's Play:

Est. 1927

Corrective Action Plan — December 31, 2020

2020-001:

Contact Person
Kathy Feist

Corrective Action
Update internal controls to require a second employee to review and verify manually entered data
and formulas on spreadsheets submitted for grant reimbursement requests.

Completion Date
Year ending December 31, 2021

A vxv\-{']va\Hy accredited ok And vecCreadion Agency.

400 East Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



BradyMartz

June 9, 2021

To the Board of Park Commissioners
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District
Bismarck, North Dakota

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District for the year ended December 31, 2020. Professional
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance as
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have
communicated such information to you on May 14, 2021. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by Bismarck Parks and Recreation District are described in
Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the
application of existing policies was not changed during 2020. We noted no transactions entered
into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the
proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that
future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive
estimates affecting Bismarck Parks and Recreation District’s financial statements were:

Net Pension Liability - Management's estimate of its actuarially calculated pension liability is
based on several factors including but not limited to, anticipated investment return rate,
retirement age for active employees, life expectancy, salary increases, and form of annuity
payment upon retirement.

OPEB Liability - Management's estimate of the post-retirement benefit obligations includes
assumptions in order to determine the year-end liability. We evaluated the key factors
regarding management’s assumptions used to calculate the liability determining that they
are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

-1-

Make Every Day Count |



Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures
and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each
opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the
financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated June 9, 2021.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the District's financial statements
or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements,
our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that
the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations
with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’'s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and
our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary
comparison schedules, schedule of employer's proportionate share of net pension liability,
schedule of employer contributions, schedule of employer's share of net OPEB liability and
notes to the required supplementary information, which are required supplementary information
(RSI) that supplement the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not
audit the RSl and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
-2-

Make Every Day Count |



We were engaged to report on schedule of expenditures of federal awards, which accompany
the financial statements but is not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Park Commissioners and
management of Bismarck Parks and Recreation District and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Torud, Mors

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTA

Make Every Day Count | v



Subject: FW: Elk Ridge Third Park
Attachments: ELK RIDGE 3 FINAL PLAT.pdf; ELK RIDGE 3rd exhibit

From: Landon Niemiller <Iniemiller@swensonhagen.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2021 2:49 PM

To: Randy Bina <RBina@bisparks.org>

Cc: Jason Petryszyn <jpetryszyn@swensonhagen.com>; Wendy Berg <wberg@bisparks.org>; Dave Mayer
<dmayer@bisparks.org>; Kim Lee <klee@bismarcknd.gov>; Cam Knutson <cam@knutsonteam.com>
Subject: Elk Ridge Third Park

Randy,

Attached is the final plat for the proposed Elk Ridge Third Addition. Per our earlier conversations, please add our
request for the Park District to accept Lots 47 & 49 Block 3 for park lands to be used as part of the trail network & a
parking area/trailhead, to the Park Board agenda.

We have adjusted Lot 14 Block 3 so that an additional trail head/access point is available on the east end of Cogburn
Road right-of-way.

Please let us know if you have any questions.

Thanks,

Landon Niemiller
Land Development Technician
email: Iniemiller@swensonhagen.com




SINIRISYIN S0
SCOHLIM IN3NLLSG OL 300 SIV1d SNONTd
PONS AMYA AR SIONVISI GNY SONWY3E

1734 TYNOUYNULINE F¥Y St
9961 4O ANIUSTTOY
INOZ HINOS £3 OYN.

nusis
2UYNIGH00D FNYTd VLS YIONYD HINON
“AUVO JIVNIOEORT

ZONYNIGHO 1D

48 3N0Z HINOS “3NYd VIS YIONYD HINON
DNEvIE 30 SEVE

S3ION

30v1d M iNInovon O
135 38 2 INIRONOR ©

1202 'Z AwvriEls

IYS I UMBI I 1YL 3N
DOTMONIIY 3H ONY UVLRIHTI INCI0S 3HL GUNOIXI OHM_ONY NI O38ROSI0 NOSH3d 3L X Ol 3n

AMONN XTIV AMNGH (3.3 ATIYNOSH3d I 390420 1207 20 4v0 — SHL MO
¥ 5007 1 107 a0
SinEw
S3kix3 NOISSINGD AN (. "HoOTNA 40 ANDD

VICHYT HISON AINNDD HOLTRING 4
2nend 1uvion (V103v0 HIBON 30 WIS

FMYs L GUDII I LYK 3 01 0IGTWONIOY IH ONY UYILMHD) ONIBI3H0I
JU_GUMDIXT OHK ONY M QINOSI NOSH3S I 36 0L I 01 NMONN 1T SHIJOTIAIT HIYON SONYASE 0
Q3V3ddv ATIVNOSH3d 3n 390438 1202 0 ava SHI NO

¥ 50078 | 107 L33 SI107 TIV_ HIMO
€O58S  ON SOWVrSE
3N Y081 AVAMIOM S5
ujwﬁb,ﬁ,uax.ﬁxvciﬁm

“ HOGTNG 40 AINNDD
(v103vQ HIHON 0 VIS

V34V ININISYI L SSOHOY HO/ONY HIAD HIONN HUYM S0 MOL QUINMUSEONN

Dovsns oy et
ANINZOYNYI MIUVM IRIOLS INMVINYA ONY ONOYYING ‘YA NOUSDHLSNDO3S NOUDMRUSNOD S0 ZO0d¥Nd
U HOJ _SININISYI YNYYO ONY MUV ASOLS. SY NOJYIM 3IVOIOI0 SYRiY ISOHI SSOWDY HO/aNV
HONOMIL HIND "HIONN 20VNIYHG MU YM DIVIUNS GNY HIMIS AUOLS JO FOcid I HOJ QNYT Il HIM
NOY GI _SININISYI ZIYMVHO ONY HIUYM WS0IS. JONYAS/E S0 A1O 3HI GING ILYOIQ30 FHOMIHIBI A3
SININISYI ALITUA SV NOIHIH
TUYKOSIT ONYT SO SOudS MYINZ) ISOHL 4IONN HO NO SIMHIS BO SIUMUN JNBNd HIHIO ¥O INOHATLIL

YD 404 ONYT I HIM Ny U 01 SININISYI UYONIG OSTY A

HOLYAISINRGY ALO — JNOH T HIEX
R ———— 77T

1202 0 AV T i (ACHdY NOUNOSIY A8

NINYA SYM VIONYO HIMON SOUYISE 40 SHINOSSINNGD ALD 40 GHvD8 FHI SO NOUJY INIGORMI ML
AVid TAGUIDY FHI JO ANYONNOS 3L MHIM
2NUIYId SAON3¥d ANY JUYOYA ABRIN SI00 QNY_VIONYD HIYON SONVMSIE 0 AlD 3HI 0 NYId d31SYR
3HL QL INIMONFAY NY SV 1¥id G3AONddY I NO NWOHS SV SONNOND 3HL QHAOYdAY SYH ‘O3
NMOHS SLT341S TIV 0 NOUYDIO3 31 (UGIXIY SYH “1Y1d JHI NO NWOHS SY ONY1 S0 NOSIIENS

341 G0N SYH YIDNVD HIBON JYOUYNSE J0 41D 3 O SUINOESSINMGD D 40 04v08 i

SIENOBSINGD ALD 0 G2v0d 30 TVACSIY

ANVIZOIS ~ HLTMI N8
ASTUY  NYmIVID - ZINVMKDS T Tviom

OUYNSI S0 ALD FHL IO NOISSINAGO INNNYIS 3HL JO ANVITUIIS

ONY NYRIVIO 3L 90 STYIS ONY SONYH 31 LIS 34V JO3YFM SSINIM NI ‘NOKSINmGI INMNNYId

QS 3l A8 QUJ0QY SNOUVIIORY ONY YOUYISE JO ALD U J0 STONYNGHD 'Y10XYD HIYON 40 YIS

3L 0 SMYT HiW DNVOMODOVY NNZOZ T ML NO SO4VYNSIE O UD 3t 40
NOSSITOO DNINNYId I A8 0Ny NI38 SYH 1¥1d JHi NO NWOKS SV ONY1 0 NOSWIOBNS 31

NOBSIANGD DNINNY Id ALD 30 TVACSIIY

SBST DN NOUVHISOR TN

Dd 0 P NIIYH NSNS hn“ BRGS0\ AIN0a

(v103va HI¥ON 40 UYVIS

123000
JuY SWYL30 JUI00Z3 ONY TYNOSNIMA 1Tv 1VIL GNY 43S NI3@ IAVN SINGANNOM Q3MINOTY TT¥ IVHL
“LOIYHGD 3o NOJIH NWOKS SINIAWOM, TIV L¥iul_“L¥T33 ONy TOUTWOKN AN 0 1538 3kl 01 1230103

£
g
&
§
I3
H
s
i
P
i3
§
k3
EH
25
E
E
3
g

DNNNG3IE 20 LNOd ML O1 1711 »9'¥ZR 40 JONVISAD ¥ 3T HINGS aYS
INOTY IS¥3 SONGOZS £Z SUNNM Cr SO0 §9 HINOS DNIU SIS 0F ZNYd HINON 6I1 AHSNMAL 6|
NOUDIS 40 »/3 3N 3HI 4O 3N HINGS 34t 01 LI1J LSYOr JO HIONT1 JHY NY "JA¥MD SMOY¥ 1004 0000
NO 'LIT1 ML 0L ONY ATHIHINOS NI LI £9°195 40 DNYLSI ¥ IWRIIND OGS INOTY INFINUNGD
1S3 SGNADIS 4§ SUNNIM PO STROIT 00 HINOS IONIHL ‘1T B¥ DZZ 10 HIONTT ¥V NY_SNTRIUND
S SNOTY ININNUNGD SAWD Sy 1004 0Z'I'1 ¥ NO “1HOR JHI OI GNY ARGHINOS W3 4314
£6DSZ 30 ONYISI ¥ INUAUNID QvS INOTY IMOMINGD ISY3 SONOOIS 25 SUMNIM O S334930 11 HINOS
Y v: AN SNV 1004 000002
f A
s 30 4 i 1sv3
N0 NGD IAMD SNy 1004 D0DO9 NO 1437 3Hi 01 ONY AIHINOS TN 1T 0L'9ZZ
DNVISIT ¥ IMRIIND GYS SNOT | SN LC SIRO30 95 HINOS
1334 99°ZC 40 HIINIT 4¥ NY M1 A5¥3 GIYS INOTY DNNWUNGD ANND Siavd 1003 00DZHT ¥
‘1HORS ML 01 ONY ATMISINHINOS TONFHL ‘1333 TSI 30 ONVLSID ¥ SMRIUNID OGS ONOTY INNNUNGT
IS3M SONGOIS 6 SIMMA 90 STIII0 OF Hii £
z AsIa ¥ 4
2]

r9'rz8
3.02,5v.885

e

V.LOMVYA HLHON ‘ALNNOI HOIFTHNg YModvYNsIg

NVIAIAIAN TVdIONTHd HLISIA FHL 40

LSTM 08 TINVY HLIHON 68/ dIHSNAMOL

61 NOILIIS A0 #/1 TN JHL 40 L¥VS

P 8/ NOILIZS A0 ?/1 IS JHL 40 LyVd
¥ 84 NOILITS A0 #/4 IS JHL 40 V L0T S,J0LIANAV INIZG

NOILIQav a4dIH1 39dai4d X'14

W%TTL

e
U
1
1

e ————Ti
r JF

.

W e P
LAl

.

1

.21,85.205]

s
I




*D’'d ANVAIWOD) ¥ NADVH ‘NOSNAMS

ANINISYI Yl

V.LOXVYd HLHON ‘ALNNOO HOIFTHNE HOHVINSIS
NVIAIIIN TVIIINIId HLAIA AL A0
LSTM 08 JINVY HINON 68/ dIHSNMOL
64 NOILIZS 40 ¥/t IN JHL A0 J4Vd
P 8/ NOILIIFS A0 #/1 IS IHL J0 I¥Vd
P 84 NOILIZS A0 #/1 IS JHL 40 V LOT S.40LIANV INITE

NOLLIaayv a4dIH1L 39dld X134

2PLEL05_

8l 3
2
~
- 120Z T AMYONYP
-
-
=~ .09 = 1 — 3W0S
Ll
=~ © i -
g
~
~
~ -
‘g
9L %5 oV
Y "
N
N
N 4
N
N\ M 09 oNvH
N 671 arisamar
e
P— o Y — e
Nouxiay m
45380 30v3
=
=
B
o0z
a2 21H
||||||||| A
- 1
|
1 T o s s —— |
! g
1 g |
" i £
3 I 3
m e L) G “ er Nwr i _m.o—u & %
43
2 ] | > Aol PPN
i |z mm o 5 &S »;h, o/t /
1 Bl gz seenm 2 H e L s 5 /
[ = 2 s 8 3 43
1z H i 3 . £
! ﬂw 3.00,0008N : acoonoen 1] 3§ i %.w,. An%»wb *%-\ 2 \\
-3 X 1. A _ 8l | 2,00.00.06N Y s oew enn! T &
| .UM 197z | Dot ma._ mm B o0EEL A ] o .%b«.l /
- z 1 < 2 < 3 £
ey L . i || & fE TRNEm g e/ &
e gle © 3 | -1 R P s oasy O /
" e g oc s b e /
INanISYI 1 .w.m it w.uw@~ /
MO poei Wruln.«s.:||. o3t L um«..onef.x.ﬁz 4 /
12 iz
o590z oozt Py < / i
P ~ S A /
FARIA XMVH HSHVA S = aaw oW~
. y v - S \
....... [T Y= (1= £ =2 =
e " SN o, © £
[ung; sy - e - A B V4 /
z .
_ hbi.m swn | sonn z| s com m 3 soem s REAE SN ! hwnn.n /
& L z 9 = s 3z ¥ i 5 o ek 4 . 4 Nowoay
5 B B gl ge £ I ide fE TR g g
g[8 g2 gl B gl smen g5 /T T s ey 74 3 | P
H ] < ® /AT AN o8
2/ 3 A s £ ag |/
=/ 3 g
o0se 058 0S8 ova Locsr orye/ Ao, /88 )8 u,qv,wwn. 8/ ﬂ.ﬁ‘ /
T So o T R L oz [ SE [T s eorw SOy ~
| mZzcecsees | | x m.d:..% 000 S ¢ P \\
SENST LT, L5y,
o _ _ o | © M @R 53 nm e Y /
i | | Gbu_uut | | nsu* anys Gy 7} ;
| 5 ? 169 soozs _JA /
E] » c z H /
e | ®_ _ [ _ Lol TR g /
] [
ez © @ | _ _ [ ! _ o] maed /
1570 TOV3 | ' i iy RNl WU T (S S oo \® y N !
! /
S 1/
~~ !
= /lhltllL\\ \\
s <Y
s W / /
[ Y | [ B ) I T, /

00SS

B

0055

SUTE




» 0 £ LINS

It sosnomen

g v 3 dopar]
9098+ 2 1104 34

| ammst
et

09-581-61 NOILDIS
¥/ 3N QILLYIINA

LVIE

exi

2.
SR
g%
AN3N3SY3 L
NOUD3UONd 3407

s i

B 'S oa-sci-s1 Nouoms
m > 107 540407V
=L

& anansvd

Noiioay
00 w3
S 0t g cei-——— L
|
- =
1 —_——
, I
.
| | &
||||| 120Z Tl ANYONYr ) .
09 = 1 — 3WOS E: z
- g b L34 .
. F .h —_—
A 33
7 g8 = 1]
n & 1 2
g3 . |
m
6L
3 =

1N3AISYI UvaL
sn-uNn @ Drnvea
UVMRUS

68128

45 POCKICT
6%

©

Y.LO)VAd HLHON ‘ALNNOD HOIFTHNE MOHVISIE
NVICIIIN TVIIINTId HLATS THL A0
LSTM 08 SINVY HINON 65/ dIHSNMOL
64 NOILISS 40 #/1 IN JHL 40 Ldvd
P 84 NOILIIS 40 #/1 IS JHLI 40 I¥Vd
P 8/ NOILISS A0 #/4 IS JHL 40 V 20T S.J0LIAAV INITT

NOILLIaayv a4diH1 39did X134




[ —
g s p ey
ey gy
ramy pry
Sopxiyy
isms

(e

90%+¥55 (102 304
0093 - 472 (102) 2004t
e TS g
05¥5 BOTEQ N e
sy g 606

">’d ANVAINO)) ¥ NaDVH 'NOSNAMS

08 TNV
N 6C1 dHSAMOL
61_NOUDIS 9" 4314 WNOUYNIINT\ 03-6£1-61 NOUD3S
v 107 S¥0LaNY Fo'vZ8 < ¥/1 35 QILLYIND
3.82,5v.885 3N /L \
STOSL -

120Z €1 ASVONYVT

.09 = .1 - 305 ﬂ.mw
23
I===C] 3
o o
]
09-6€1-61 NOUDIS
»/L 3N QILLYIGNN
2 "
ININISY3 vl R
ISA-UWIA_¥ 30VNMVEa b 1
W vmmaLs 1
x 4 ! 1
® i |
| |
i i
i i
h 1
og! 1
gl H
L !
\, Jovizees Siosc EET10 1
i 75T g !
i H
L2 1
Jq !
o |
3 t
2lls !
g H
15 1
.3 1
I H
4 3 |
23 |
4
- Do > |
7
LS nm " i3 |
] m 1
ANIPISYI R&9 )
3V 3d 001 e 1
MY ITESN "
8 1
s e !
\ §  ANInIsY3 3ovNvea 1
\ P ¥ auvensols or I
!
1
5 raiis 1
1
1
D |
1
1
1
1
1
|
)
03 .w .m 1
A m |
t] 1
5
S
-3

V.10)va HIHON ‘ALNNOD HOIFTHNEG HOHVINSIE
NVTATIIR TVLIINIIS HLAIA THL A0
LSTM 08 JINVY HLHON 68/ JIHSNMOL
64 NOILIZS A0 #/4 N JHL A0 LoV
P 84 NOILIIS A0 #/4 IS JHL 40 LAV
7 84 NOILISS 40 #/1 TS JHL 40 V L0T S.d0LIARY INITE

NOILIaayv d4dIHL 39dId M13




BISMARCK PARKS AND \
RECREATION DISTRICT Le.k‘ S P\”“/ :
Est. 1927

DATE: June 9, 2021

TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, Zimmerman, and President Jeske
Randy Bina, Executive Director

FROM: Kevin Klipfel, Facilities and Programs Director@

RE: 2021 Matching Grant Program Round Two Funding Recommendations

The Matching Grant review committee consisting of Commissioners Gilbertson, Executive
Director Bina, and I met with the five grant applicants on June 8" to review their project
applications. I would like to thank Commissioner Gilbertson along with Executive Director Bina
for their participation in this process. We continue to have great interest in this program and
appreciate the support, cooperation and passion from the different groups and organizations to
partner together to improve the recreational opportunities in our community. We had requests
from five groups totaling $31,206.53 which falls within our budget for 2021.

The Matching Grant budget for 2021 is $100,000. A summary of applications and committee
recommendations is attached along with a copy of the Matching Grant Application.

Commissioner Gilbertson will be providing an overview of the committee recommendations for
the Board’s consideration.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

A wﬂ\'{']omé\\ly accredited park And vecreation Agency.

400 East Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P: (701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



€5°907°TES | 90°€SO'TOTS | €S°90TTES | €S90C'TES V101
‘papaau Se swiajl Joujw JaYlo
pue juswade|dal Jaquiny pajeaJl-uaald ‘Supepuns
. ; ) i . . . . 91e32.138e Suippe ‘Suipeud sapnjoul aoueudUIRIA| wnaloqly
00°00S°2S 00°000'SS 00°00S°TS 00°00S'C$ 7o s Spryen et BRI 0 SEmes . gnio Aseloy yuewsig
109 AJea1,0 woJ 3y3 JO J3UI0D ISIMYLIOU 3Y]
Ul Pa1ed0| WIN}3I0q.Y Aleloy yolewsig ay1 anosdw|
. p . . . . . ‘ 1d wWeoy ay3 J9A0 paledo| |Ied-J YHUM Jaulely [leJ-3 yum Jautel] Jeg Awapeoy
ESTYYTS 90°588°C$ ESTYYTS ESTYYTS Jeq 3|3uys |euonipess s,uawom Suiisixe ayl Supeday | 3|8ulS [RUOIHPEL] S,UBWOA SOIISeUWAD Yauewslg
‘uepuelpl/olewsig
Buliojdxa 1o} uondo Ajpuaily- AjjeIusawuolinua
00°000SZS 00'0¥9°68S | 00°000°SZS 00°000STS pue 3jqepioye ‘Ayleay e yum sIoysiA aJeys jig wea aieys g Yys
pue ‘syuapnis 989|102 ‘syuapisal apinoid 03 wasAs
aleys ayiq a|qeuleisns e dojanap 03 3|inq 123foid v
00'7OE'TS 00'809'z$ | 00VOETS | 00VOETS Z# YUy ‘MdA 18 s3an0e1d 201 U0 10y s1aduing MdA 103 SpIY 2] >Ios 008
: : ’ ; A9X20H Yolewsig
‘Hods ay3 4oy Aqua
01 si3l1ieq a3 SulIdMO| SNY3 3314 0} 3sn 03 auoAue uo13231044 (vina)
00°096S$ oo.omm@w oo.oomm 00°096S 01 3|qejieAe s| 1eyy ageyded Juawdinba ue jo ped SIpJ0D OIOWWO) YHM UOI1B1D0SSY 95504087
aJe sped Japjnoys ssay| ‘a8ueyd 3[nJ assoloe] sn e sped Jap|noys asso.ioe uepuelAl ydJewsig
40 3snedsq pade|dal 9q 01 paau sped Jap|noys yINg
9pUaWWO0Id o)
g vmc_uc:u : vamEu;mw oD peisanbal uonduasaqg 193fol 11 393 dd
! ! s queaijddy 3oUEISISSY nai a 193{o.d 931 193lold luedljday
pasodoud |eyol

120z aunf ‘om| punoy

SNOILVYII1ddV LNVYD ONIHOLVIA

1D141SId NOILVIHIIY ANV SHHVd MDHVINSIG




NATIONAL GOLD MEDAL WINNER

BISMARCK PARKS AND

RECREATION DISTRICT
Est. 1927

021
atching Grant

Program

VS AR o o - & b, =i > 5} —
P A i o - »

FACILITIES . GROUNDS . EQUIPMENT

www.bispa.rﬁks.org



Bismarck Parks and Recreation District Matching Grant Program -1-

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Matching Grant Program is to encourage associations, organizations, clubs, or individuals to
sponsor a project in a Bismarck Parks and Recreation District (BPRD) facility or park for the advancement of recreation
opportunities in Bismarck.

INITIAL PROJECT REVIEW: Prior to submission and deadline, Kevin Klipfel, Facilities and Programs
Director, must be contacted at 222-6455 to conduct an initial project
review to make sure project meets minimum specifications.

RECOGNITION OF MATCHING The approved projects shall have a recognition plaque, dedication,

GRANT: or some other recognition signifying the project is part of the BPRD
Matching Grant Program.

ADMINISTRATION AND Administration and accounting procedures will be determined by

ACCOUNTING: agreement with approved parties. All approved projects on Park District

property must follow Park District purchasing guidelines, local ordinances,
and state laws. Upon completion of the projects on Park District property,
BPRD will assume ownership of the improvement or equipment, unless
other arrangements are agreed upon.

WHO CAN APPLY: Associations, organizations, clubs, or individuals in the Bismarck Parks and
Recreation District who are interested in applying for a grant to sponsor a
project may apply. Projects must be facility improvements and may include
the purchase of recreation equipment.

SCHOOL DISTRICT PROPERTY: Projects on School District property must
have a letter of support from the School District’s buildings and grounds
supervisor and school principal. Projects on School District property must
have a three-way dollar for dollar match, with Bismarck Public Schools,
School PTO and BPRD.

APPLICATION OBTAINED AT: BPRD Office, 400 East Front Avenue Bismarck, ND 58504. Applications will
be available after January 1 of each year.

APPLICATION DEADLINES: Application deadlines for 2021 are 5:00 pm on February 1 (Round 1) and
June 1 (Round 2).

FUNDS AVAILABLE: The Board of Park Commissioners shall determine how much, if any, will be

available each budget year for matching funds and may change or make
exceptions to the amount at any time. $100,000 has been budgeted for
2021.

APPLICATION REVIEW/INTERVIEW: After the deadline, a committee of staff and Commissioners will review
all applications, conduct a short interview with applicants, and make
recommendations to the Board of Park Commissioners at the February 18th
and June 17th Park Board meetings.

APPLICATION APPROVAL/ Letters will be sent to all applicants, indicating the approval or denial of
DENIAL: grant money. For those approved, an agreement will be sent to the
successful project sponsors, which states the provisions of the grant funds.



Bismarck Parks and Recreation District Matching Grant Program -2 -

FUNDING:

SCHOOL PROJECT FUNDING:

PROJECT SPONSOR CERTIFICATION:

GREATEST CONSIDERATION:

NO CONSIDERATION

PROJECT COMPLETION:

Projects will be funded at no more than 50 percent of the total

estimated cost, or up to a maximum of $25,000, whichever is

less. The Matching Grant Program provides a dollar-for-dollar match. The
program does not consider matching funds for projects with inkind
expenses. The Board of Park Commissioners, at its discretion, may approve
matching funds of over $25,000.

Projects on School District property will be funded up to 33 1/3
percent or $25,000, whichever is less. The Matching Grant
Program provides a dollar-for-dollar match. The program does
not consider matching funds for projects with in-kind expenses.

The project sponsor must certify that they have the necessary funds
for their share of the total estimated project’s cost.

Projects that will receive the greatest consideration are as follows:
* Projects that fit into the Bismarck Parks and Recreation
District’s strategic plan, mission and vision.

* Projects that serve a wide variety of people or large number of
people, rather than to projects serving a limited group.

* Projects that can be used throughout the year - more than one
season.

* Projects that have a developmental plan approved or reviewed
by Bismarck Parks and Recreation District.

* Projects that are on Park District property.

* Playground projects must comply with current playground
standards and guidelines. Playgrounds that include a ramp

with an accessible route will receive the highest consideration.

Projects that will NOT receive consideration for funding:

* Projects on private property as fixed improvements that aren’t
open to the public.

« Personnel, operations, consultants.

* Projects that have begun before grant approval.

« Projects that use in-kind expenses as a match for grant
application.

*No clothing or uniforms.

The approved projects must be completed in the year they are
awarded, otherwise Park District funding will be lost.



10.

11.

Bismarck Parks and Recreation District Matching Grant Program -3-

2021 MATCHING GRANT APPLICATION

APPLICATION DEADLINE: 5:00 PM ON FEBRUARY 1 AND JUNE 1
COMPLETE AND RETURN TO:
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District ® Attn: Kevin Klipfel
400 East Front Avenue * Bismarck, ND 58504 ¢ (701) 222-6455
kklipfel@bisparks.org

DATE OF APPLICATION:

APPLICANT:

CONTACT PERSON: IF SCHOOL, PRINCIPAL'S NAME:
ADDRESS: CITY:

STATE/ZIP: TELEPHONE NUMBER: (H) (C)

EMAIL ADDRESS:

PROJECT TITLE:

ESTIMATED PROJECT START DATE: COMPLETION DATE:

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED PROJECT (INCLUDE LOCATION AND SITE MAPS WHERE APPLICABLE):

JUSTIFICATION FOR PROJECT:

ESTIMATED NUMBER OF PEOPLE BENEFITED:

ESTIMATED AGE CATEGORIES BENEFITED:

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT COST (INCLUDE ANY PRICE QUOTES OR COST ESTIMATES RECEIVED):

AMOUNT OF ASSISTANCE REQUESTED:

AMOUNT OF APPLICANT’S CONTRIBUTION:




Bismarck Parks and Recreation District Matching Grant Program -4 -

12. OTHER SOURCES OF ASSISTANCE (NAME, TYPE, AMOUNT):

13. BY SIGNING OR TYPING MY NAME BELOW, | HEREBY CERTIFY THAT FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $

(AT LEAST 50 PERCENT OF TOTAL ESTIMATED COSTS) ARE AVAILABLE FOR THE ABOVE STATED PROJECT.

SIGNATURE:

TITLE:

DATE:

PROJECT COST ESTIMATES

Attach any written cost estimates received from vendors or contractors, etc.

PROJECT ITEM UNITS ESTIMATED COST

TOTAL:

APPLICATION CHECKLIST

O3 Initial project review with Facilities and Programs SCHOOL PROJECTS:

Director?
3 Letter of approval from BPS Buildings and Grounds?

3 Application completed?
O Letter of approval from school principal?

O Project sponsor certification of funds available?




Subject: FW: Park Name in Silver Ranch 1st Addition (Section 19)

From: Karen Danley <silverranch67 @gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2021 2:56 PM

To: Chad Wachter <CW@investcore.com>; Randy Bina <RBina@bisparks.org>; Wendy Berg <wberg@bisparks.org>;
JAMIE@INVESTCORE.COM; Donna Fricke <silverranch60@gmail.com>

Subject: Park Name in Silver Ranch 1st Addition (Section 19)

Hello Bismarck Parks, Silbernagel Family, and Investcore,

The Silbernagel family has decided to name the Silver Ranch 1st Addition Park in Section 19 the "A. James Silbernagel
Memorial Park".

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

Karen Danley
Silbernagel Family



BISMARCK PARKS AND \
RECREATION DISTRICT | ed's P\ay:

Est. 1927

TO: Commissioners Munson, Gilbertson, Zimmerman, Jordan and President Jeske,
Randy Bina, Executive Director of Parks and Recreation

FROM: David Mayer ﬂ\/\
Operations Director

DATE: June 10, 2021

RE: Playground Bid- Sertoma Shelter 11

Commissioners and Randy:

Bids were opened on June 9, 2021 at 1:30pm for the play equipment, installation, and surfacing for
the playground at Sertoma Park, shelter 11. We received bids from four playground suppliers, and a
bid summary is below. One bidder did not provide their certificate of a ND contractor’s license.

Wendy Anderson-Berg, Park Planner, and I reviewed all proposals and evaluated the play
equipment based on the following criteria:

a. Compliance with current standards and guidelines (CPSC, ASTM, ADA)

b. Compliance with insurance certifications

c. Quantity of play events and play value

d. Compliance to bid specifications

Play Equipment and Installation

We recommend accepting the bid submitted by Dakota Playground and Landscape Structures for
play equipment and installation for the total bid price of $38,193. Dakota Playground provided a
design that was comparable to the drawing and approved prior to the bid, and the total bid price
was the lowest.

Surfacing
We recommend accepting the bid submitted by Safety First/Grondahl Recreation for the
playground surfacing and installation for the bid price of $5,768.

If approved, we anticipate this project will move forward this summer. Thank you for your time
and consideration of this matter.

cc: Wendy Anderson-Berg, Park Planner

Playground| Contractors | Play Equipment &
COMPANY NAME Approved License Installation Price | EWF Price
Dakota Playground X Y S 38193 | ¢ 7,582
Safety First/Grondahl Recreation X Y S 51,685| S 5,768
Cunningham Recreation X N n/a n/a
My Turn PlaySystems X Y S 56,690 | S 8,900

A nationally accredited park and recreation agency.

400 East Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



From:

Date:

Subject:

Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, Zimmerman, and President Jeske

Randy Bina, Executive Director

David Mayer, Operations Director ',77’1/\

June 10,2021

Commissioners and Executive Director Bina:

Cottonwood #2 Fence Bid Consideration

Bids were received on June 9, 2021, for the Cottonwood Diamond #2 Fence Project. The bid from
Dakota Fence for a total bid price of $69,726.00 was the only bid received for this project. Our estimate
for this project was $49,000.

Staff does not recommend awarding this project.

400 Easl Front Avenue

,L\ V\L\-\HOV\é\Hy Accredited park And recCreation Ago_x\Cy.

| Bismarck, ND 58504

P

(701) 222-6455

F: (701) 221-6838

bisparks@bisparks.org

www.bisparks.org



BISMARCK PARKS AND \
RECREATION DISTRICT | ed's Pi2y:
Est. 1927

To: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, Zimmerman, and President Jeske
Randy Bina, Executive Director

From: David Mayer, Operations Director ]2/}/1
Date: June 10, 2021
Subject: Fox Island Fish Cleaning Station Improvements

Commissioners and Executive Director Bina:
Bids were due and 2:00 pm on June 9, 2021, for the Fox Island Cleaning Station Improvement Project.

Unfortunately, we did not receive any bids for this project. In speaking with a few contractors, they
noted their current workload they had and that they did not feel they could fit the project in.

Staff recommends moving forward with the District quoting out portions of the project separately.

A nationally accredifed park and recreation agency.

400 East Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org www.bisparks.org



BISMARCK PARKS AND \
RECREATION DISTRICT | et's P\AY:
Est. 1927

To: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, Zimmerman, and President Jeske
Randy Bina, Executive Director

From: David Mayer, Operations Directo'r“W)
Date: June 9, 2021
Subject: Bid Recommendations

Commissioners and Executive Director Bina:

Bids were received on June 9, 2021 for the McDowell Dam pavement improvement project. We are
recommending accepting the bid submitted by Dakota Concepts for the total bid price of $35,659.00.

The following summary is provided for your information:

Vendor Bid Price

Dakota Concepts $ 35,659.00
Zimmerman Contracting, Inc $ 47,095.00
Strata Corporation $52,412.55
Northern Improvement Company $ 58,928.00

If approved, the project will move forward this summer. Thank you for your consideration.

A v\A-HoV\AHy accredited park and vecreation Agency.

400 East Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS
May 20, 2021

The Board of Park Commissioners held their regular meeting on May 20, 2021 in the Tom Baker
meeting room of the City/County Building. President Jeske called the meeting to order at 5:15
pm. Commissioners Gilbertson, Zimmerman, and Munson were present. Commissioner Jordan
was absent.

Commissioner Gilbertson moved to approve the agenda as presented. Commissioner Munson
seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson,
Zimmerman, Munson, and President Jeske. The nays being n‘on;e,‘ the motion carried.

Don Moseman and Kristen Wilson with the North Dakota Safety Council (NDSC) appeared
before the Board to present the Park District with the NDSC Wcrkplace Safety Merit Award.

Eric Lindstrom, Managing Director of Development for Ducks Unlimited, Inc., provided an
update on the Clairmont Family Conservation Park, which will eventually be donated to the Park
District. He also reviewed the Access and Standstill Agreement with Ducks Unlimited which
provides the Park District the ability to begin master planning the park prior to the donation.
Commissioner Munson moved to approve the agreement as presented. Commissioner Gilbertson
seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson,
Zimmerman, Munson, and President J eSke The'nays being none, the motion carried.

Sue Peterson reviewed, the results of the comrnumty survey regardlng the proposed indoor
recreation complex. 'Commissioner Zimmerman moved to accept the community survey results.
Commissioner Munson seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes:
Commissioners Gilbertson, Zlmmerman Munson and President Jeske. The nays being none,
the motion camed HHLTHIT ‘

Commlssmner Munson moved that staff proceed Wlth plans to provide the survey results to the
public at an upcoming commumty meeting. Commissioner Gilbertson seconded the motion, and
the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Zimmerman, Munson, and
President Jeske. | The nays being none, the motion carried.

Commissioner Munson expressed his desire to clarify the role the Park District has in meetings
regarding the BNSF railroad bridge consulting party meetings. The Board has authorized staff to
participate in the meetings, but only as a means to access information. This participation in no
way makes the Park District a partner with the Friend of the Rail Bridge.

Travis Johnson from Houston Engineering reviewed the bids received for Hidden Star
neighborhood park. Commissioner Gilbertson moved to reject the bids received and to re-bid the
project in the future. Commissioner Munson seconded the motion, and the voting went as
follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Zimmerman, Munson, and President Jeske. The
nays being none, the motion carried.



Jason Petryszyn from Swenson, Hagen and Company presented the bids received for the
Promontory Point neighborhood park. Commissioner Munson moved to reject the bids received
and re-bid the project in the future. Commissioner Gilbertson seconded the motion, and the
voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Zimmerman, Munson, and President
Jeske. The nays being none, the motion carried.

Facilities and Programs Director Kevin Klipfel reviewed the bids received for the BSC Aquatic
and Wellness Center flooring replacement project. Commissioner Munson moved to accept the
low bid of $32,970 from Hruby Flooring. Commissioner Zimmerman seconded the motion, and
the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Zimmerman, Munson, and
President Jeske. The nays being none, the motion carried. '

Commissioner Gilbertson moved to accept the low bid of $2 OOO .per month and the agreement
submitted by Toptracer Range for the golf ball flight. tracking system to be installed at Fore
Seasons Center. Commissioner Munson seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows:
Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Zimmerman, Munson and Pre51dent Jeske The nays being
none, the motion carried. i, it

Finance Director Kathy Feist reviewed proposed changes to the Accountlng Manual
Commissioner Munson moved to approve the changes. Commlssmner Zimmerman seconded the
motion, and the voting went as follows Ayes:. Commissioners Gilbertson, Zimmerman,
Munson, and President Jeske. The nays bemg none, ,the motion carrled

Commissioner Munson moved to approve the 2022 budget development timeline as presented.
Commissioner Gllbertson seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes:
Commissioners Gllbertson Zlmmerman Munson and President Jeske. The nays being none,
the motion carried.

President J eske rev1ewed the followmg 1tems on the consent agenda:

Cons1derat10n of the Apr11 15,2021 Board meeting minutes.

o Request Board authotization to apply for the following RTP grants:

o The first proposed prOJ ect is an update to the maps on all trailhead signs throughout
the Park District system as well as the installation of new signs where needed for
recently installed trails or where the signs are no longer in good condition.

o The second plO_] ectisa trall rehabilitation of the Hay Creek Trail from Century to 19"
Street.

e Request Board authonzatlon to call for bids for various projects and replacement of the

playground near Sertoma Park shelter #11.

e Consideration to accept Transportation Alternatives grant funds for Ash Coulee and Tyler

Parkway Trail Project which would be a 2024 project.

e Consideration of change order for 2021 Improvement District projects — unit 1: Sertoma

Park parking lot sealing.

Commissioner Gilbertson moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Commissioner
Munson seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners
Gilbertson, Zimmerman, Munson, and President Jeske. The nays being none, the motion carried.



President Jeske reviewed the letter provided by Executive Director Bina, informing the Board of
his intention to retire effective October 1, 2021. Commissioner Gilbertson moved to accept his
retirement. Commissioner Munson seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes:
Commissioners Gilbertson, Zimmerman, Munson, and President Jeske. The nays being none,
the motion carried.

Commissioner Gilbertson moved to approve the bills for payment with checks 407119 to

407145 and 204787 to 205020 along with bank drafts DFT000946 to DFT000969, EFTs 1292 to
1337 and direct deposits 37429 to 38556. Commissioner Munson seconded the motion, and the
voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Zlmmerman Munson and President
Jeske. The nays being none, the motion carried.

Commissioner Gilbertson moved to approve the Real Estate Purchase Agreement for $892,000
with St. Mary’s Church for 6.82 acres of land that the Park D1strlct has been leasing since 1928.
This item was discussed in executive session at the Apr11 Board meeting, and the purchase
agreement is within the parameters set by the Board. Commissioner Munson seconded the
agreement, and the voting went as follows: Ayes:; Commissioners Gllbertson Zimmerman,
Munson and President Jeske. The nays being none, the motlon carr1ed ‘

The next regular Board meeting will be held June 17 2021 at 5 15 pm in the Tom Baker Meeting
Room. The meeting was adjourned at 6: 52 pm i



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS
May 27, 2021

The Board of Park Commissioners held a special meeting on May 27, 2021 at the Park District
Administrative Office. President Jeske called the meeting to order at 7:30 am. Commissioners
Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, and Zimmerman were present.

Commissioner Zimmerman moved approval of the agenda as presented. Commissioner Munson
seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissiqgers Gilbertson, Jordan,
Zimmerman, Munson and President Jeske. The nays being none, thg;ﬁi’o’ffén carried.

{

i

{ %iw\ )
Legal Counsel Connie Hofland provided information about the o joc‘:%% o select a new Executive
Director relating to open meetings and public records. ‘ﬂ{ MEV%

{ 1 h
(i, il
. ; ; ; T P, i
Executive Director Bina reviewed a sample timeline a_gd;relatéd ocuments Vx}

L
ith, the Board.
dh U
1 3 : * . ¢f$§:;'§§ ’E! i ‘Ei?iﬁv
After a variety of discussion, Commissioner Munsoﬁiﬁ}" ved to ]ﬁ%d another spec gz_ii})s[Park Board

meeting on June 2, 2021 at 7:30 am at the Park Distric”&cjﬁiﬁi’stré‘t‘ive Office to further review
the job related documents and discuss the steps to move fbnykéxd with the process.

Commissioner Jordan seconded the motign ,gand the voting viletﬁt‘ﬁi as follows: Ayes:

Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Zimm fﬁfdp, Munson and Ph@ﬁs}edientl Jeske. The nays being
. . 4§ it

none, the motion carried. ' i

The meeting was adjourned at 8:37 am.

¢fid

i }f’%u
A
"i;, 13
,z;j%?:; E‘ii }
i 1;!iz!‘ it i )
1118 i Hyy
ifnl; i i,(, L},f
%&H Q ¢ ‘}} 335%;;%”;%; Wit WE‘
({‘:‘“?%gzﬂf!ih { }il‘ ) Y Eiﬁwi
MTILLUHE T it L
i Wi N
i iiig?” Wi,
dll Wil Wi, o
313‘;1’&%‘ ' xi% N 1\i.‘ii§§§af
N, i iy
123 H
“fi?gf?h {543 4
i, T
ﬂgi%iiii m
Hitih, i
‘EIE?EM ik
Hitth, 1L
‘féégmz;» ‘
)L
g



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS
June 2, 2021

The Board of Park Commissioners held a special meeting on June 2, 2021 at the Park District
Administrative Office. President Jeske called the meeting to order at 7:30 am. Commissioners
Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, and Zimmerman were present.

Commissioner Zimmerman moved approval of the agenda as presented. Commissioner Munson
seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commlss;opers Gilbertson, Jordan,
Zimmerman, Munson and President Jeske. The nays being none, thg} motion carried.
rh

Executive Director Bina reviewed information relating to the ta k oﬁ ‘éﬁ }Executwe Director who
serves as clerk of the Park District as appointed by the Board* Qf Park C Hmﬁmssmners

s‘{
Commissioner Munson moved to open the position to 1hternal and extemal cax}dgdates according
to the draft timeline that was provided at the May 27, 2021 meqtmg Commlss1Qn] r Jordan
seconded the motion, and the voting went as followsﬂiAyes Co missioners Gllbe{nson Jordan,
Zimmerman, Munson and President Jeske. The nays belglg n?ne 'tHe motion carried.

Commissioner Munson moved to list thé; hltrmg range for the% sition as $120,000 - $135,000

annually. Commissioner Zimmerman secqnded the motion, and khe} Vot ng went as follows:

Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Zlmmermalil} Munson anq \Pfesident Jeske. The nays
H

being none, the motion carried. 1; il
t

) 11y Af)
" Wiy
Commissioner Munson mo‘ved ‘go accept the JOb ana1y51s andhob description as provided at the
May 27, 2021 Board eetmg qup issioner Gllertson seconded the motion, and the voting
went as follows: Ayésr%lC mmissi %glers Gllbertsonf J ordan Zimmerman, Munson and President
Jeske. The nays being non}eﬂ‘iche n}o’uon carried. E}
i{ { « i; i ¥ )

Comm1531 eril\{/luqs ;ﬁmovedE ’t{O wve the ifull‘ijBoard of Park Commissioners screen the
apphcatlons that mee ‘the p}lnlmum quahﬁcatlons as determined by Zuger, Kirmis and Smith.
Commlssmner Gllbertson épponded the motlon and the voting went as follows: Ayes:
Comm1séy®pers Gilbertson, ‘Uordan Zlmmerman Munson and President Jeske. The nays being
none, the motlon carried. }

'%1 h ’g i
Commissioner Glltg tson mdvé:d to have the final candidates take the General Management In-
Basket assessment a c}rﬂlmstered by Management and Personnel Systems, Inc. and for the final
candidate to go through Park District background check. Commissioner Zimmerman seconded
the motion, and the Voﬁng went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan,
Zimmerman, Munson and President Jeske. The nays being none, the motion carried.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:29 am.



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS
April 15,2021

The Board of Park Commissioners held their regular meeting on April 15, 2021 in the Tom
Baker meeting room of the City/County Building. President Jeske called the meeting to order at
5:15 pm. Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, and Zimmerman were present.

Commissioner Jordan moved approval of the agenda as presented. Commissioner Gilbertson
seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan,
Zimmerman, Munson and President Jeske. The nays being none, the motion carried.

Deputy Chief Randy Ziegler appeared before the Board on behalf of the Bismarck Police
Department as the Featured Partner and Program.

Mike Herzog, BNSF Railway Director of Bridge Maintenance, made a presentation to the Board
regarding the status of developing the plan to build a new rail bridge over the Missouri River.

Margie Zalk Enerson, representing Friends of the Rail Bridge, provided information to the Board
on their efforts to save the current rail bridge.

Commissioner Zimmerman moved that the Park District issue a statement of support of the
efforts of Friends of the Rail Bridge. The motion died for a lack of a second.

Commissioner Munson moved that the Park Board table any further discussion on the topic of
the rail bridge for up to six months. Commissioner Gilbertson seconded the motion, and the
voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Zimmerman, and Munson.
Nays: President Jeske. The motion carried.

Brad Krogstad from KLJ reviewed the bids received for the development of Silver Ranch
Neighborhood Park. The bids have been reviewed and approved by the Bismarck City
Commission as they are being funded through the Neighborhood Parks and Open Space Policy.
Commissioner Munson moved to approve the following low bids from Northwest Contracting
for a total of $669,735.30:

e Schedule 1 Base Bid: $447,341.50

e Schedule 2 Base Bid: $150,919.55

e Schedule 2 Alternate 1: $71,474.25
Commissioner Jordan seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes:
Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Zimmerman, Munson and President Jeske. The nays being
none, the motion carried.

Jeff Ubl from Ubl Design Group provided the Board with an update on the construction of the
new maintenance facility.

President Jeske reviewed the following items on the consent agenda:
e Review and approval of March 18, 2021 Board meeting minutes.
e Request to hold deer and turkey archery hunting program on City/Park District properties.



e Request Board authorization to apply for Garrison Diversion Recreation Grant for the
Sertoma Fitness Improvements Project, a portion of the construction costs for the Tom
O’Leary Tennis Court restroom project and a picnic shelter replacement at Steckel Boat
Landing as well as an America the Beautiful Grant for additional trees at Riverwood Golf
Course.

e Consultant agreement to extend Pebble Creek Golf Cart Paths with Apex Engineering.

e Review and approval of ice user agreements with the following:

o Bismarck Public Schools
o Bismarck Hockey Boosters
o Bismarck Figure Skating Club
o Bismarck Sports Group
o Capital Curling Club
Consideration of BSC Aquatic and Wellness Center Use agreements with:
o Bismarck Public Schools
o Bismarck Aquatics and Fitness, Inc.

Commissioner Gilbertson moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Commissioner

Munson seconded the motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners

Gilbertson, Jordan, Zimmerman, Munson and President Jeske. The nays being none, the motion

carried.

Commissioner Munson moved to approve the bills for payment with checks 407107 to 407118
and 204585 to 204786 along with bank drafts DFT000935 to DFT000945, EFTs 1253 to 1291
and direct deposits 36616 to 37428. Commissioner Gilbertson seconded the motion, and the
voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Zimmerman, Munson and
President Jeske. The nays being none, the motion catried.

President Jeske stated that the Board may choose to pass a motion to go into executive session to
formulate contract negotiation strategy and instruction to negotiators for a possible acquisition of
the currently leased portion of Lion’s Park. The Park Board has the authority to go into
executive session for this purpose pursuant to NDCC Section 44-04-19.1(9).

Commissioner Jordan moved to go into executive session. Commissioner Munson seconded the
motion, and the voting went as follows: Ayes: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Zimmerman,
Munson and President Jeske. The nays being none, the motion carried.

The executive session was called to order at 7:08 pm. Those present were President Jeske,
Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Zimmerman and Munson, Executive Director Randy Bina,
Administrative Services Manager Julie Fornshell, Legal Counsel Connie Hofland, Community
Relations Manager Dana Schaar Jahner, Operations Director David Mayer, Facilities and
Programs Director Kevin Klipfel, Finance Director Kathy Feist and city of Bismarck Engineer
Gabe Schell.

The executive session was held to formulate and give guidance on contract negotiation strategy
and instruction to negotiators for a possible acquisition of the currently leased portion of Lion’s
Park. The Park Board has the authority to go into executive session for this purpose pursuant to
NDCC Section 44-04-19.1(9).



The executive session ended at 8:18 pm. The members of the Board only gave guidance to
negotiators during the executive session. No final action was taken by the Board on this issue.

The Board of Park Commissioners will have a park tour on April 20, 2021, starting at 4:00 pm.
The tour will start at the Park District Office located at 400 East Front Avenue, Bismarck, ND.
The next regular Board meeting will be held May 20, 2021 at 5:15 pm in the Tom Baker Meeting
Room.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:19 pm.



BISMARCK PARKS AND , \
RECREATION DISTRICT Led's Play:

Est. 1927
DATE: June 4, 2021
TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, Zimmerman and President Jeske
Randy Bina, Executive Director
FROM: Kevin Klipfel, Facilities and Programs Director @
RE: USA Softball Agreement — 2021 Slow Pitch Men’s D National Tournament

Attached please find the agreement between USA Softball and Bismarck Parks and Recreation
District to host the 2021 Slow Pitch Men’s D Northern National Tournament on September 3-6,
2021.

This tournament is scheduled at Clem Kelley Softball Complex with 40-60 teams expected to
participate. This tournament will be in the 14" national softball tournament hosted by Bismarck
Parks and Recreation District along with our partners, Bismarck-Mandan Convention and
Visitors Bureau and the Bismarck Men’s and Women’s Softball Associations.

We have reviewed this agreement and request Board approval.

Thank you for your consideration, and please let me know if you have any questions.

A nationally accredited park and recreation agency.

400 East Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org www.bisparks.org



DATE: June 4, 2021

TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, Zimmerman and President Jeske
Randy Bina, Executive Director

FROM: Kevin Klipfel, Facilities and Programs Director

RE: USA Softball Agreement — 2021 Slow Pitch Men’s D National Tournament
Attached please find the agreement between USA Softball and Bismarck Parks and Recreation
District to host the 2021 Slow Pitch Men’s D Northern National Tournament on September 3-6,
2021.

This tournament is scheduled at Clem Kelley Softball Complex with 40-60 teams expected to
participate. This tournament will be in the 14" national softball tournament hosted by Bismarck
Parks and Recreation District along with our partners, Bismarck-Mandan Convention and
Visitors Bureau and the Bismarck Men’s and Women's Softball Associations.

We have reviewed this agreement and request Board approval.

Thank you for your consideration, and please let me know if you have any questions.



[ USA SOFTBALL NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP TOURNAMENT AGREEMENTJ

This National Championship Tournament Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the
_26 _day of _May 202_1 (“Effective Date”) by and between USA Softball, Inc., an Oklahoma not-for-profit
corporation, with its principal office at 2801 N.E. 50th Street, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73111 (“USA Softball”),
the acting as and known in the Agreement as the NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP TOURNAMENT
HOSTING ORGANIZATION (‘Host") and the Bismarck Parks & Rec. District (“Sponsor”). Host and
Sponsor are collectively referred to in the Agreement as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, USA Softball is responsible for promoting and conducting annual national championship
tournaments for each class and division of USA Softball Championship Play as set forth in USA Softball
Procedural Code Article 314(each a “National Championship Tournament”); and

WHEREAS, USA Softball has awarded to Host the right to host one or more National Championship
Tournaments during the applicable Tournament Year (“The Tournament Year”); and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual promises and agreements herein and for other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP TOURNAMENT

1.1 The Slow Pitch Men's D Northern (the “Tournament”) for the Tournament Year shall be held at
Bismarck, ND (“Tournament Site”) with competition to begin on 9/3/2021 (the “Tournament Start Date”)
and be completed by 9/6/2021 (the “Tournament End Date”).

1.2 Host and Sponsor shall abide by the terms and conditions of the bid submitted by Host for the
Tournament (the “Bid”), which is herein incorporated by reference. To the extent the Bid requires Host
to pay for any expense or provide any benefit of greater value, quantity or quality than the provisions of
the Agreement or the USA Softball Procedural Code, the Bid shall govern with respect to such expense
or benefit; in all other respects, the terms of this Agreement and the USA Softball Procedural Code
shall govern.

2. TERM OF THE AGREEMENT

21 The Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and, unless sooner terminated as provided
herein, shall terminate on the thirty-second (32nd) day after the Tournament End Date.

3. APPLICABLE GOVERNING DOCUMENTS

31 Host and Sponsor shall perform all duties and obligations required by law, statute, or regulation as
Tournament host in accordance and compliance with the USA Softball Procedural Code, the Official
Rules of Softball in effect during the Tournament as published and amended by USA Softball from time
to time, the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and the terms and provisions of the Bid, each of
which is hereby incorporated by reference. Any and all provisions, rules, and procedures shall be
completed by the time period specified by USA Softball from time to time. The provisions of the USA
Softball Procedural Code shall control the obligations of Host and Sponsor including but not limited to
Articles 409, 504, 505, 602, 603, 604, 605, 606, 607, 206, 207, 301, 302, 303, 304, 305, 306, 307, 309,
310, 311, 316, 317 of the USA Softball Procedural Code. USA Softball shall provide a copy of the USA
Softball Procedural Code, and the Rules to Sponsor and Host upon written request.



41

4.2
4.3

4.4

4. OBLIGATIONS OF THE HOST

Host shall provide Tournament facilities conforming to the most current USA Softball Procedural Code,
and Official Rules of Softball (the “Rules”).

Host shall comply with USA Softball Rule book Rule 3 Section 3 regarding game balls.

Host shall be responsible to provide and pay for certain expenses related to the Tournament including,
without limitation, each of the following:

A.

Game Fees. Host shall comply with USA Softball Procedural Code Article 603 regarding
game fees.

Umpire In Chief (“UIC”), Assistant UIC, Umpire Staff (collectively, “Umpires”). Host
shall provide housing, two to a room, for all umpires throughout the Tournament. The Host will
provide the UIC and the Assistant UIC with local transportation to and from their Hotel and the
Tournament Site. Host shall provide a private dressing room and meeting facility in close
proximity to the playing fields for the Umpires’ use. Host shall pay UIC a per diem and Assistant
UIC a per diem throughout the Tournament, this amount is stated in Article 603 of the USA
Softball Procedural Code.

USA SOFTBALL Representative (the “Representative”). Throughout the Tournament,
the Tournament Host shall provide for the Representative a single room at the hotel designated
by Host as the headquarters hotel and shall provide the Representative with a vehicle for his/her
exclusive use. Host shall pay the Representative a per diem this amount is stated in Article 603
of the USA Softball Procedural Code.

USA SOFTBALL President and Chief Executive Officer. Host shall provide the USA
Softball President and the USA Softball Chief Executive Officer, or their respective designee’s,
complimentary housing accommodations, and local transportation equal to or exceeding the
accommodations and transportation provided to the Representative throughout the Tournament.

Pursuant to Articles 603(C) of the USA Softball Procedural Code, Host shall be solely responsible for all
operations and all operational and administrative expenses associated with hosting and conducting the
Tournament including, without limitation, the following:

A.

Field Maintenance. Host shall ensure a properly trained and equipped grounds crew is on
hand and present throughout the Tournament to ensure the facilities remain clean and free from
any obstructions and in compliance with the USA Softball Procedural Code, and the Rules.

Security and First Aid. Host shall ensure properly trained and equipped security,
ambulance service and emergency medical personnel are available throughout the Tournament.

Tournament Support Staff. Host shall retain sufficient personnel to perform as
statistician(s), announcer(s), official scorekeepers, scoreboard attendants, ball chasers, ticket
sellers, ticket collectors, and other gate crew throughout the Tournament. USA Softball may
require Host to retain additional personnel whenever USA Softball determines, in its sole and
absolute discretion, such additional personnel are needed.

Advertisement and Promotion. Host shall prominently advertise and promote the
Tournament prior to and throughout the Tournament. Host understands and expressly agrees
to prominently mention, display or indicate USA Softball in all Tournament advertising materials.

3=



4.5
4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

E. Program / Ticket Printing. No later than thirty (30) days prior to the Tournament Start
Date, Host shall submit to USA Softball for approval a design copy of the Tournament program
and a sample form of Tournament tickets. Title to all programs and tickets supplied to USA
Softball pursuant hereto shall immediately pass to and vest in USA Softball. If USA Softball fails
to notify Host within ten (10) days after its receipt of these items of a decision to reject any
advertisement, graphic or text contained therein, the program and ticket materials shall be
deemed approved by USA Softball for Tournament use. Host shall print a sufficient number of
Tournament programs and tickets prior to the Tournament Start Date.

Host shall comply with USA Softball Procedural Code Article 606 regarding Tournament awards.

At Tournament Check-In, Host shall obtain and collect fully signed Roster Forms from each participant
who will be participating in the Tournament (and shall not allow participation unless fully signed forms
have been provided in advance of the start of the Tournament). Host shall also provide, pay for and
host a pre-Tournament event at which a meal is provided for at least one (1) representative of each
participating team and each of the Tournament sponsor representatives, the Umpires, Host and
Sponsor representatives, USA Softball Council members, representatives and commissioners, the USA
Softball President and Chief Executive Officer or their designee(s), the press, and other persons invited
by Host who are present at the event (the “Pre-Tournament Event”). At the Pre-Tournament Event, the
Host shall provide each team representative with a copy of USA Softball's Participant Manual and, at
the Pre-Tournament Event or directly after the Pre-Tournament Event, the Host shall provide each
team representative with an opportunity to inspect the fields and facilities.

Host shall provide free admission at all Tournament games for USA Softball Council members, their
spouses and immediate family upon production of identification identifying such person as a USA
Softball council member. Such admitted persons shall be entitled to reserved seating and admittance
to hospitality functions, but only up to a maximum of 25 reserved seats and admissions in the
aggregate. For purposes of satisfying the obligations of this subsection, in addition to the applicable
free admissions (which shall be unlimited in number), Host shall reserve for USA Softball's use
twenty-five (25) best seated reserved tickets to each game and the same number of passes and
invitations to any hospitality function hosted by Host or Sponsor in connection with the Tournament.

Host shall be solely responsible for all souvenir items sold at or in conjunction with the Tournament.

A. Pre-Approval of All Souvenir Items. A sample or exemplar of all souvenir items Host
proposes to sell or allow others to sell in conjunction with the Tournament shall be submitted to
USA Softball at least thirty (30) days prior to the Tournament start date. Excluding those items
provided for in the immediately following sentence (all of which shall require affirmative
approval), if USA Softball fails to notify Host within ten (10) days after its receipt of these items
of a decision to reject any such items, then as to those items that do not contain the USA
Softball name, emblem or logo that were not timely rejected, those items shall be deemed
approved by USA Softball for sale in conjunction with the Tournament. Pursuant to
Article 310(J) of the USA Softball Procedural Code, souvenir items with the USA Softball name,
emblem or logo must be affirmatively approved in advance and in writing by the USA Softball
National Office prior to their use, production or resale. Host shall not sell or permit the sale of
any rejected item.

B. Souvenir Reporting. Host must comply with USA Softball Procedural Code Article 604(1) in
submitting souvenir report to USA Softball for all souvenir sales, including sales made by
third-parties (if any). If Host or Sponsor execute a contract or agreement with or allow a
third-party to sell any souvenir item(s) at or in conjunction with the Tournament, Host shall
ensure that such contract (the “Vendor Contract”) and such third party shall comply with USA
Softball Procedural Code Article 604 (I) in submitting a report which details its gross sales. Host
shall provide USA Softball with copies of all Vendor Contracts prior to the Tournament Start
Date.

Following the Tournament End Date, Host shall prepare and submit the following reports to USA
Softball:

-3-



4.10

4.11

5.1

5.2

5.3

A. Financial Report. Host must comply with USA Softball Procedural Code Article 604(F)
and 607(E)(04). Host's President, Chief Financial Officer or Chief Executive Officer and the
Sponsor Commissioner shall each be jointly and severally responsible for filing the Report and
shall warrant and guarantee its accuracy and completeness.

B. Official Final Standings. Within twenty-four (24) hours after the Tournament End Date,

Host shall fax or email and mail to USA Softball National Office the official, final Tournament
standings of all participating teams. USA Softball Procedural Code Article 607(E)(01).

C. All-American Teams. Within twenty-four (24) hours after the Tournament End Date, Host
shall fax or email and mail to USA Softball National Office a list of the Tournament'’s first (1st)
and second (2nd) All-American teams for each adult division of USA Softball Championship
Play. USA Softball Procedural Code Article 607(E)(02).

B Tournament Highlights. Within thirty (30) days after the Tournament End Date, Host shall
comply with USA Softball Procedural Code Article 307(E)(03).

E. Advertisement and Promotional Material. Within thirty (30) days after the Tournament
End Date, Host shall submit to USA Softball copies of all photographs (i.e. team and action),
news releases and statistics taken, issued or compiled during the Tournament and all materials
used in advertising, promoting and publicizing the Tournament including, without limitation, at
least six (6) action photographs and team pictures of the champion, runner up and first (1st)
All-American teams chosen at the Tournament.

F. Use of Tournamentusasoftball.com Host shall comply with the USA Softball Procedural
Code Article 405 (D)(14) and utilize http:/tournamentusasoftball.com/ for all Championship
Finals Tournaments.

In addition to the preparation and submission requirements of the above Section 4.9, Host shall be
responsible for the following:

A. Tournament Results, Score Sheets, Entry Fees, Assessments. Host shall comply
with USA Softball Procedural Code Article 605, 607(E)(3-5). Within thirty (30) days after the
Tournament End Date, Host agrees to remit to USA Softball that portion of the Entry Fee which
represents the $100-per-team ($25-per-team for slow pitch) assessment fee due USA Softball
pursuant to USA Softball Procedural Code Article 603(A) and, additionally, the $100/$300 per-
team bid fee due and required by USA Softball's Board of Directors, as set forth in the Bid
Documents and USA Softball Procedural Code Article 603.

B. All-American Team Statistics. Within thirty (30) days after the Tournament End Date,
Host shall submit statistics to the USA Softball National Office. (USA Softball Procedural Code
Article 607 (E)(06)).

The Tournament cannot be cancelled without the written consent of USA Softball’'s Chief Executive
Officer.

5. OBLIGATIONS OF USA SOFTBALL

USA Softball shall resolve questions regarding qualification or eligibility of any team or team member
entered in the Tournament in accordance with the USA Softball Procedural Code, USA Softball Code,
and the Rules.

The USA Softball shall select the UIC and all members of the umpire staff to officiate in the
Tournament. The UIC selected by USA Softball shall be in charge of all details pertaining to the
officiating duties of the umpire staff during the Tournament. If an Assistant UIC is required pursuant to
USA Softball Procedural Code Article 409 (C)(2)(a, b, & c), the Sponsor’s regional UIC shall select and
assign any Assistant UIC.

USA Softball understands that there may be local laws, regulations, and ordinances that the Host may
have to abide by that could ultimately affect the play of the tournament. Host shall make USA Softball

4-



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

aware of all such laws, regulations, and ordinances as soon as possible so they may be discussed with
all parties to determine a way to properly complete the tournament. In conducting the tournament, USA
Softball shall endeavor to comply with all laws, regulations, and ordinances that apply to tournament

play. '
6. OBLIGATIONS OF THE SPONSOR

Sponsor guarantees Host's complete and faithful performance of each and every obligation of Host
contained or referenced in the Agreement or Bid. Accordingly, Sponsor shall be jointly and severally
liable for the performance of Host's liabilities and obligations arising under or in connection with the
Agreement or Bid. In addition to all other available remedies and as specified in USA Softball
Procedural Code Article 605(B), if Host or Sponsor fails to file any report or remit any payment when
due under this Agreement, Sponsor will be barred from bidding to host or sponsor any USA Softball
tournaments until: (i) all monies and reports required under the Agreement are received by USA
Softball; (ii) all monies owed under the Agreement are written off by the USA Softball Board of
Directors; or (iii) the Sponsor Commissioner is replaced.

Sponsor shall comply with the U.S. Center for SafeSport and USA Softball’s eligibility and complaint
procedures for any disciplinary complaints made concerning the Event. USA Softball's complaint
procedures may be found in USA Softbal's By-Laws located on the internet at:
https://www.teamusa.org/USA-Softball/About/About-Us/USA-Softball-Code.

Sponsor shall familiarize itself with all requirements of the U.S. Center for SafeSport
(www.safesport.org) that would apply to the Event. Sponsor shall comply with all obligations of the U.S.
Center for SafeSport, including any educational requirements, background check requirements and/or
mandatory reporting obligations required by the U.S. Center for SafeSport.

Sponsor shall comply with any and all mandatory reporting obligations required by local, state or federal
law. Sponsor is advised that any observed suspicions or instances of ‘child abuse’ as that term is
defined by federal law may be subject to mandatory reporting obligations of federal law (34 U.S. Code §
20341), which would require mandatory reporting within 24 hours to an applicable State’s Child
Protective Services agency and/or the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

7. SPONSORSHIPS /| MARKETING AGREEMENTS

Neither Host nor Sponsor may enter into any sponsorship or marketing agreement for purposes of,
affecting or relating to any National Championship Tournament without the prior, written approval of the
USA Softball Chief Executive Officer.

USA Softball national sponsors shall have the right and opportunity to market their goods and services
at the Event. Any marketing or sponsorship fees charged to USA Softball national sponsors and
relating to the event shall be non-discriminatory.

8. EARLY TERMINATION

If at any time either Host or Sponsor fails to perform or is in breach of any obligation imposed by the
USA Softball Procedural Code, the Rules, the Bid or the Agreement, USA Softball may serve notice on
Host and Sponsor specifying the nature of the breach. If Host and/or Sponsor do not cure the breach
immediately to the complete satisfaction of USA Softball, USA Softball may serve a Notice of
Termination of this Agreement, which shall be effective upon mailing, and may then cause the
Tournament to be relocated.

Host and Sponsor acknowledge and agree that USA Softball has relied on the full and complete
performance of Host and Sponsor under the Agreement and early termination of the Agreement would
cause immeasurable and irreparable harm to USA Softball. As a consequence thereof, Host and
Sponsor agree to forfeit the Tournament Guarantee, as provided for in the USA Softball Procedural

-5



8.3

9.1

10.1

11.1

11.2

121

12.2

12.3

124

Code, USA Softball Procedural Manual, and the Bid, if the Agreement is terminated for any reason prior
to the Tournament End Date.

Nothing in this Article shall be deemed a restriction upon USA Softball’s rights to enforce any other
remedies specified in the Agreement and to seek any and all available legal or equitable relief, as well
as recovery of all expenses, including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in enforcing
its rights under the Agreement.

9. INDEMNITY / HOLD HARMLESS

Host and Sponsor shall defend, indemnity and hold USA Softball harmless from and against any and all
loss or liability which in any way, directly, indirectly or allegedly arises out of or relates to: (i) the
Tournament; (ii) a breach of any of Host's or Sponsor’s obligations under this Agreement; or (iii) any
misrepresentation of fact or breach of any warranty mad by Host or Sponsor in or in connection with
this Agreement. However, the Host shall not be liable and shall not defend, indemnity of hold USA
Softball harmless from and against any loss or liability which in any way directly or allegedly arises out
of or relates to any of the obligations incurred by USA Softball pursuant to section 5 of this Agreement,
nor any loss or liability caused solely by the acts or omissions of Sponsor.

10. NOTICES

All notices or demands required to be made or permitted under the Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be deemed served when deposited in the United States mail as postage certified mail, return
receipt requested, with sufficient postage prepaid thereon and addressed as provided in the first
paragraph of the Agreement or to such other address as each party may from time to time designate in
writing '

11. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF HOST AND SPONSOR

Sponsor represents and warrants that as of the Effective Date, it is a member of USA Softball in good
standing. Host and Sponsor each represent and warrant that it understands that USA Softball has
made no representation, warranty or guarantee regarding any fact or condition which may affect the
Tournament'’s financial success including but not limited to any representation, warranty or guarantee
regarding the number of teams which may participate in the Tournament, Tournament attendance, gate
receipts, concessions or revenue for souvenir sales. Host and Sponsor knowingly and willingly assume
all risks associated with the Tournament's financial success and understand that the Tournament
Guarantee is fully earned as of the Effective Date and is non-refundable.

The Tournament Guarantee and any other sums due USA Softball (other than the $100-per-team Entry
Fees) will be invoiced to the Host on the January 1st of the year of the Tournament (or as soon as
practicable thereafter) and the invoiced sums will be due and payable within 30 days of the invoice
date.

12. MISCELLANEOUS

The Agreement contains and constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes any
prior agreements between the Parties, written or oral, with respect to the subject matter hereof.

The provisions of the Agreement are severable and the invalidity of one or more provisions herein shall
not have any effect upon the validity or enforceability of any other provision.

Neither this Agreement nor the Bid may be amended, modified, rescinded or revoked except by written
agreement executed by USA Softball, Host and Sponsor.

USA Softball may assign any rights or benefits accruing to it or delegate any of its responsibilities or
obligations under the Agreement to a subsidiary, affiliate or related entity of USA Softball upon thirty
(30) days written notice to Host. Such assignment or delegation shall not require prior written consent
of Host or Sponsor. Neither Host nor Sponsor shall assign any benefits or delegate any obligations
under the Agreement without express, prior written consent of USA Softballl.

-6-



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.8

12.9

12-10

The rights and remedies of the Parties herein specified shall be cumulative and not exclusive of any
other rights and remedies herein provided or allowed by law.

If any party commences legal action or arbitration alleging a violation of the Agreement, or seeking to
enforce, construe, modify or interpret the Agreement, or any provision herein, the non-prevailing party
shall, to the extent permitted by applicable law, pay all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by
the prevailing party in connection with such action.

Articles 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11 and 12 of this Agreement shall survive any termination or expiration of the
Agreement.

Any updates to USA Softball's Procedural Code, Technical Manual or Official Rules of Softball which
may render outdated the particular references herein to sections or subsections of those documents
shall be automatically deemed to reference the newly updated or newly renumbered section or
subsection of the applicable document.

The Agreement shall be binding on the Parties and inure to the benefit of USA Softball, its successors
and assigns.

Any waiver by a party of any breach of the Agreement shall not operate as or be construed as a waiver
of any other breach of such provision or of any other provision of the Agreement. Any waiver must be
in writing. Failure to insist upon strict adherence to any term of the Agreement on one or more
occasions shall not be considered a waiver or deprive such party of the right thereafter to insist upon
strict adherence to that term or any other term of the Agreement.

The Agreement shall be governed by interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State
in which the Tournament Site is located, regardless of any contrary conflict of laws provisions. USA
Softball, Host and Sponsor each agree that any action arising out of the Agreement shall be litigated
under the laws of the State in which the Tournament Site is located with any state court action to-be
brought in the applicable state of federal district in which the Tournament Site is located, to the
exclusion of all other courts, venues or jurisdictions. Nothing herein shall limit a party’s right to remove
an action from state court to federal court, pursuant to applicable law and rules. USA Softball, Host and
Sponsor agree to submit to the jurisdiction of such courts, after service of process in accordance with
applicable law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, USA Softball, Host and Sponsor have executed the Agreement in triplicate
copies, each of which shall be deemed an original, effective as of the Effective Date.

USA Softball, Inc.

Craig Cress, Chief Executive Officer

Host

Name, Title

Sponsor

Dick Gulmon, Commissioner

-



BISMARCK PARKS AND L D\ \
RECREATION DISTRICT Let's 1% ¥

DATE: June 3, 2021

TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, Zimmerman and President Jeske
Randy Bina, Executive Director

FROM: Kevin Klipfel, Facilities and Programs Director@

RE: VFW Sports Center Advertising Agreement

We have reviewed this advertising agreement with the Bismarck Sports Group (BSG) and made
updates to the agreement for them to sell advertising at VFW Sports Center, Rink 1. This
agreement includes the banners, signboards, windows, and dasher boards. The agreement
indicates the locations the advertising signs will be allowed, along with the fees and payment
schedule.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

A nationally accredited park and recreation agency.

400 Fast Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



Contract for Sale of Advertising and Signage in
VFW Sports Center, Rink 1

Parties: The parties to this contract are the Park District of the city of Bismarck, North
Dakota (hereinafter the District), 400 E. Front Avenue, Bismarck, ND, 58504, and
Bismarck Sports Group LLC, (hereinafter BSG) at 1200 North Washington Street,
Bismarck, ND 58501.

Purpose of this Agreement: This agreement is to establish guidelines for the sale and/or
trade of advertisements (banners, signboards, windows, and dasher boards) in the VFW
Sports Center Rink 1 by BSG as part of their operation of a USA Hockey affiliated Junior
“A” Hockey team.

Terms of this Agreement: The term of this agreement begins July 1, 2021 and ends
June 30, 2023.

Commission: BSG will pay the District the following commission schedule on all
advertisements sold and traded:

Adpvertising/Signage Cash Sales

Up to $50,000 = 10% commission Maximum of $5,000
$50,001 - $100,000 = 7.5% commission | Maximum of $3,750
$100,001 and above = 5% Not to exceed $5,000
Advertising/Signage In-Kind and Trade Out Sales

Maximum of $100,000 = 2.5% ] Not to exceed $2,500

BSG will provide to the Park District a full list of all sold and traded advertisements
(banners, signboards, windows, and dasher boards) in the VFW Sports Center and the
value of the advertisements.

In addition, BSG will be allowed a game day advertising sign on North Washington
Street. BSG will provide a separate list for the advertising on this sign and will provide
the District a 25% commission for the advertising, payable to the Bismarck Recreation
Council by March 15" of each year. All expenses associated with the advertising,
including development, production, installation, or replacement of this sign will be the
responsibility of BSG.

Payment Schedule: Payment will be made in full and a listing of all advertisements sold
and traded will be provided to the Park District as follows:

Payment Due By: For:

March 15, 2022 All sales for the 2021-2022 season (July 1, 2021 — March 15,

2022)

March 15, 2023 All sales for the 2022-2023 season (March 16, 2022 — March
15, 2023)

June 30, 2023 Any commission on advertising sales made between March 16,

2023 and June 30, 2023 must be paid to the Park District prior
to a new contact being signed or June 30, 2023 at the latest.




Cost of all signs, advertising development, installation and removal will be the
responsibility of BSG.

BSG is provided the following opportunities to sell advertising in the VFW Sports Center
arena 1:
e Dasher board panels
e Upto 16 logos on the ice
e Sign boards — Final number by approval. Signs may be 4°x8’ standard or larger
by approval
e Advertising banners
e Lobby windows and windows between rink #1 and the curing rink — during games
only
¢ Plexiglass — no lower than 12” from the top of the plexiglass on rink ends only

By separate approval of the District, BSG will have the option to sell four (4) cash only
(not in-kind) ad panels on the corner of the scoreboard.

Advertising in lobby windows and windows between rink #1 and the curling rink are
approved with this agreement as advertising panels. Advertising on the lobby windows
and windows between rink #1 and the curling rink are permitted during games only (up
one hour before game time and removed % hour after game) and are considered
temporary advertising.

No advertising will be permitted outside the VFW Sports Center or in the parking lot.

Advertising Approval: All advertising will be subject to approval by the Park District
as follows and will be in good taste and displayed in the interest of the ice community
and public at large. Advertising of beer will be accepted as temporary and only allowed
during Junior A hockey games or BSG sponsored events. No advertising of tobacco will
be accepted as temporary or permanent signage. Signs will be completed by professional
sign company at expense of BSG. Installation of signage will be coordinated with
Facilities Manager or designee. Advertising of beer will be approved by Park District
and allowed only during the time of sale during games (one hour prior to game and
removed within one-half hour after game) and approved events.

Agreement with Other Entities: It is further understood that BSG will negotiate
annually under separate agreement sale of advertising previously sold by the Bismarck
Hockey Boosters and Bismarck Figure Skating Club. Payment to Bismarck Hockey
Boosters and Bismarck Figure Skating Club, including sales right’s fee for signage sold
in Rink 1 by BSG is established by their separate agreements. A copy of the advertising
agreement between BSG and the Bismarck Hockey Boosters and the Bismarck Figure
Skaters must be presented to the Park District by August 1* of each year. Percentage
payment to the District is in effect for all sales.



Dated this day of

, 2021

Julie Jeske, President
Board of Park Commissioners

, 2021

Randy Bina, Executive Director
Bismarck Parks and Recreation District
400 East Front Avenue

Bismarck, ND 58504

, 2021

BY:
Dated this day of

BY:
Dated this day of

BY:

Thom Brigl, President
Bismarck Sports Group, LLC
1200 North Washington St.
Bismarck, ND 58501



BISMARCK PARKS AND

\
RECREATION DISTRICT Let's pLay:

DATE: June 3, 2021

TO: Commissioners Gilbertson, Jordan, Munson, Zimmerman and President Jeske
Randy Bina, Executive Director

FROM: Kevin Klipfel, Facilities and Programs Directo@
RE: Capital Ice Complex Advertising Agreement

We have reviewed this advertising agreement with the presidents of the Bismarck Figure
Skating Club and the Bismarck Hockey Boosters for these groups to sell advertising at Capital Ice
Complex (Schaumberg and Wachter Arenas). This agreement includes the dasher boards and
wall signs in both arenas and indicates the locations the advertising signs will be allowed, along
with the fees and payment schedule.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

A v\mL':ov\n\lly accredited park and vecreation Agency.

400 East Front Avenue | Bismarck, ND 58504 | P:(701) 222-6455 F: (701) 221-6838 | bisparks@bisparks.org | www.bisparks.org



Contract for Sale of Advertising and Signage in
Capital Ice Complex

Parties: The parties to this contract are the Park District of the city of Bismarck, North Dakota
(hereinafter the District), 400 E. Front Avenue, Bismarck, ND, 58504, and the Bismarck
Hockey Boosters/Bismarck Figure Skaters (hereinafter Ice).

Purpose of this Agreement: This agreement is to establish guidelines for the sale and/or trade
of advertisements (wall signs and dasher boards) in the Capital Ice Complex (CIC).

Terms of this Agreement: The term of this agreement begins May 1, 2021 and ends April 30,
2024.

Commission: Ice will pay the District 10% commission on the total value of all
advertisements sold and traded.

Ice will provide to the Park District a full list of all sold and traded advertisements (wall signs
and dasher boards) in the CIC and the value of the advertisements.

Payment Schedule: Payment will be made in full and a listing of all advertisements sold and
traded will be provided to the Park District by April 30™ of each year.

A sample advertising contract is attached as Exhibit A. Exhibits B and C are attached as
locations where advertising can be sold (indicated in yellow) and where advertising cannot be
sold (indicated in red).

Cost of sign, advertising development, installation, repair and removal will be the responsibility
of Ice.

Ice is provided the following opportunities to sell advertising in the CIC as follows:
e Dasher panels in Wachter and Schaumberg Arenas

e Wall signs — Final number by approval. Signs may be 4°x 8 standard or larger by
written approval of the District.
o Schaumberg Arena:
Dasher panels (3’-6 x 8): Up to 38
Walls signs (4’ x 8”): Up to 18

o Wachter Arena:
Dasher panels (3°-6” x 8): Up to 38
Wall signs (4’ x 8’): Up to 18

No advertising will be permitted outside the CIC, in the parking lot, or any adjacent streets.
Advertising Approval: All advertising will be subject to approval by the Park District and

will be in good taste and displayed in the interest of the ice community and public at large. No
advertising of alcohol or tobacco will be accepted as temporary or permanent signage. Signs



will be completed by professional sign company at expense of Ice. Installation of signage will
be coordinated with Facilities Manager or designee.

7. Agreement between Entities: It is further understood that Ice will divide the sale of
advertising between the Bismarck Hockey Boosters and Bismarck Figure Skating Club. Each
group will receive 45% of the total proceeds from each sign. Bismarck Hockey Boosters shall
manage the advertising operating account, or as further agreed between parties. Payment of
proceeds to each group will be made annually, in full, by April 30" of each year, beginning in
2019, or as further agreed between parties.

Dated this day of , 2021

BY:

Julie Jeske, President
Board of Park Commissioners

Dated this day of s 2021

BY:

AlJ Emter, President
Bismarck Hockey Boosters
PO Box 2408

Bismarck, ND 58502

Dated this day of , 2021

BY:

Kalvin Kingsley, President
Bismarck Figure Skating Club
PO Box 7372

Bismarck, ND 58507



Exhibit A
CIC Dasher Board Agreement
This will serve as an agreement between , hereinafter
referred to as “sponsor” and Bismarck Hockey Boosters, Inc./Bismarck Figure Skating Club, hereinafter
referred to as “BHB/BFSC”.

BHB/BFSC agrees to provide wall sign/dasher board space to Sponsor for placement of an agreed upon
sponsorship ad for a period of 1 year at $1,000 total paid in full D (check one box) or 3 years at
$2,400, payable in fulllj or in installments of $800 per year,[:' beginning ;

Sponsor is responsible for advertising artwork. All artwork for this ad will be submitted to BHB/BFSC
or their designee, and will then be submitted for production. BHB/BFSC and the Bismarck Parks and
Recreation District will approve all artwork before being placed in the Capital Ice Complex.
BHB/BFSC will be responsible for initial costs associated with the advertisement. Sponsor will be
responsible for any production fees associated with making the ad print-ready. Should the Sponsor wish
to change the layout of the ad during the term of this contract, it will be at the expense of the Sponsor.

BHB/BFSC does not accept responsibility for advertisement after installation due to nature of activity
that takes place around the advertising. If advertisement becomes illegible or damaged beyond
recognition prior to end of the advertising commitment, it will be the sponsor’s responsibility to repair/
replace. Dashers will have a protective coating applied to help minimize damage from regular hockey
wear and tear.

Sponsor agrees to provide BHB/BFSC or their designee with appropriate artwork in a timely manner.
While a specific location may be requested, the Park District shall approve final location of all ads.

Payments may be made in the form of a check due on the 5™ day of the 1% month of each advertising
year, payable to the Bismarck Hockey Boosters. Check may be sent to:
Bismarck Hockey Boosters
Attn: CIC Advertising
P.O. Box 2408
Bismarck, ND 58502

7. Any changes to this contract must be made in writing and agreed to by all parties to the contract.

Agreed to by (Sponsor Signature): Title:

Sponsor Printed Name & Title:

Sponsor Printed Business: Date:

Agreed to by BHB President: Date:

BHB President Printed Name:

Agreed to by BFSC President: Date:

BFSC President Printed Name:




Exhibit B

g Hqlyx3 eualy 8iequineyds

e

—




Exhibit C

O HQIyx3 eualy Js1yoem






